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In this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, “we,” “our,” “us,” “Alder,” and “the Company” refer to Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc
and, where appropriate, its consolidated subsidiaries. “Alder” and the Alder logo are the property of Alder
BioPharmaceuticals, Inc. This report contains references to our trademarks and to trademarks belonging to other

entities. Solely for convenience, trademarks and trade names referred to in this report may appear without the ® or ™
symbols, but such references are not intended to indicate, in any way, that their respective owners will not assert, to

the fullest extent under applicable law, their rights thereto. We do not intend our use or display of other companies’

trade names or trademarks to imply a relationship with, or endorsement or sponsorship of us by, any other companies
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PART I. - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

(unaudited)

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Total current assets

Other assets

Property and equipment, net
Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Deferred rent

Total current liabilities

Deferred rent

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity

Common stock; $0.0001 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized,;

43,502,186 and 30,996,526 shares issued and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

June 30,
2015

December
31,
2014

(in thousands, except
share and per share

data)

$407,966
20,447
13,652
442,065
12
1,419

$443,496

$2,354
4,211
149
6,714
112
6,826

4
605,920
(169,214)
(40 )
436,670

$443,496

$46,795
9,077
113
4,758
60,743
2,456
1,160

$64,359

$1,911
2,963
135
5,009
193
5,202

3

196,082

(136,906)

(22 )

59,157
$64,359
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations

(unaudited)

Revenues

Collaboration and license agreements
Operating expenses

Research and development

General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

Other income

Interest income

Foreign currency gain

Total other income

Net loss

Net loss per share - basic and diluted

Weighted average number of common shares used in net loss

per share - basic and diluted

Three Months Ended
June 30,
2015 2014

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2015 2014

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

$—

14,088
3,930
18,018
(18,018

74

289

363
$(17,655
$(0.46

38,162,226

$4,703

9,377

2,736

12,113
) (7,410

9
9

) $(7,401

) $(0.40

18,556,561

$—

25,123

7,607

32,730
) (32,730

133
289
422
) $(32,308
) $(0.86

37,536,331

$9,485

16,397
5,896
22,293

) (12,808 )

12

12

) $(12,796 )

) $(1.30

9,827,883

)
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss

(unaudited)
Three Months
Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Net loss $(17,655) $(7,401) $(32,308) $(12,796)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities available-for-sale, net of tax 10 30 ) 10 (30 )
Foreign currency translation income (loss), net of tax (14 ) 4 (28 ) 11
Total other comprehensive loss 4 ) 26 ) (18 ) (19 )

Comprehensive loss $(17,659) $(7,427) $(32,326) $(12,815)
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(unaudited)

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2015 2014

(in thousands)
Operating activities

Net loss $(32,308 ) $(12,796)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 385 355
Loss on retirement of property and equipment 2 —
Stock-based compensation 2,306 388
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 113 259
Prepaid expenses and other assets (6,486 ) (2,155 )
Accounts payable 443 448
Accrued liabilities 1,129 551 )
Deferred rent (67 ) 179
Deferred revenue — (9,298 )
Net cash used in operating activities (34,483 ) (23,171)
Investing activities

Purchases of investments (19,750 ) (10,045)
Proceeds from maturities of investments 8,140 —
Proceeds from sales of investments 250 —
Purchases of property and equipment 646 ) (312 )
Net cash used in investing activities (12,006 ) (10,357)
Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of offering costs 406,824 80,511
Deferred offering costs 36 —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and employee stock purchase plan 828 36

Net cash provided by financing activities 407,688 80,547
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (28 ) 11

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 361,171 47,030
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of period 46,795 23,227
End of period $407,966 $70,257

Supplemental disclosures:
Offering costs included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities $119 $252

11
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Nature of Business

Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) is a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company that discovers, develops
and seeks to commercialize therapeutic antibodies with the potential to meaningfully transform current treatment
paradigms. The Company has developed a proprietary antibody platform designed to select and manufacture

antibodies that have the potential to maximize efficacy as well as speed of onset and durability of therapeutic

response. The Company’s pipeline includes three internally discovered humanized monoclonal antibodies, as well as
preclinical programs targeting additional indications that are in the discovery phase. The Company was incorporated

in Delaware on May 20, 2002 and is located in Bothell, Washington.

Reverse Stock Split

On April 9, 2014, the Company filed a Certificate of Amendment to its Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation to effect a 1-for-5.5 reverse stock split of its outstanding common stock and convertible preferred stock.
The par value per share and the authorized number of shares of common stock and preferred stock were not adjusted
as a result of the reverse stock split. All issued and outstanding shares of common stock and preferred stock, options
to purchase common stock and related per share amounts contained in the condensed consolidated financial statements
have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the reverse stock split for all periods presented.

Initial Public Offering and 2015 Stock Offerings

In May 2014, the Company completed an initial public offering (“IPO”) of its common stock. In connection with its
IPO, the Company issued and sold 8,875,396 shares of its common stock, which included 875,396 shares the
Company issued pursuant to the underwriters’ partial exercise of their over-allotment option, at a price to the public of
$10.00 per share. The Company’s shares of common stock began trading on the NASDAQ Global Market on May 8,
2014. As a result of the IPO, the Company received approximately $80.3 million in net proceeds, after deducting
underwriting discounts and commissions of $6.2 million and offering expenses of $2.2 million. At the closing of the
IPO, 20,914,137 shares of outstanding convertible preferred stock were automatically converted into 20,914,137
shares of common stock. Following the IPO, there were no shares of preferred stock outstanding.

In January 2015, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 6,900,000 shares of common stock,
which included 900,000 shares the Company issued pursuant to the underwriters’ exercise of their option to purchase
additional shares, at a price to the public of $29.50 per share. The Company received approximately $190.7 million in
net proceeds, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of $12.2 million and offering expenses of $0.6
million.

In June 2015, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 5,168,539 shares of common stock, which
included 674,157 shares the Company issued pursuant to the underwriters’ exercise of their option to purchase
additional shares, at a price to the public of $44.50 per share. The Company received approximately $216.0 million in
net proceeds, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of $13.8 million and offering expenses of $0.2
million.

13
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2.Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements reflect the accounts of Alder
BioPharmaceuticals, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All inter-company balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. The condensed consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2014 were derived
from audited financial statements. The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“GAAP”) for unaudited condensed
consolidated financial information. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and notes required by
GAAP for complete financial statements. The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements
reflect all adjustments consisting of normal recurring adjustments which, in the opinion of management, are necessary
for a fair statement of the Company’s financial position and results of its operations, as of and for the periods
presented. The Company manages its business as one operating segment; however, the Company operates in two
geographic regions: United States (Bothell, WA) and Australia. Substantially all of the Company’s assets are located
in, and revenues are generated in, the United States.

7
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These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The results of the Company’s operations for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2015 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year
or for any other period.

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Collaborators

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its deposits of cash and cash equivalents and investments in excess of
amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

One of the Company’s collaborators accounted for nearly 100% of total revenues for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2014. This collaborator accounted for 100% of total accounts receivable as of December 31, 2014.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which supersedes the revenue recognition
requirements in Accounting Standards Codification 605, Revenue Recognition. This ASU stipulates that an entity
should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The ASU also
requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized from costs
incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. This ASU is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December
15, 2017, including interim periods within that reporting period. Early adoption is not permitted, however, entities are
allowed to apply the new revenue standard for annual reporting periods beginning after the original effective date of
December 15, 2016, and retrospective application is required. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the
adoption of this ASU on its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12, Compensation — Stock Compensation. This ASU requires entities
that grant their employees share-based payments in which the terms of the award provide that a performance target
that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a performance condition.
The ASU will become effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this ASU on its consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements — Going Concern. This
ASU requires entities to evaluate for each annual and interim reporting period, whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within
one year after the date that the financial statements are issued (or within one year after the date that the financial
statements are available to be issued when applicable). The ASU will become effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2016. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this ASU on
its consolidated financial statements.

15
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As an “emerging growth company,” the Jumpstart our Business Startups Act, or the JOBS Act, allows the Company to
delay adoption of new or revised accounting pronouncements applicable to public companies until such
pronouncements are made applicable to private companies. As a result, the Company’s financial statements may not be
comparable to the financial statements of issuers who are required to comply with the effective date for new or revised
accounting standards that are applicable to public companies. We will no longer be able to take advantage of this
exemption beginning on December 31, 2015, when we will be deemed a large accelerated filer and, as a result, cease
to be an “emerging growth company”.

16
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3. Termination of License and Collaboration Agreement with Bristol-Myers Squibb

In November 2009, the Company entered into a license and collaboration agreement with Bristol-Myers Squibb, or
BMS, for the development and commercialization of clazakizumab, an antibody product candidate for the treatment of
rheumatoid arthritis, psoriatic arthritis and cancer. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company received a
non-refundable upfront payment of $85 million and granted BMS worldwide exclusive rights to develop and
commercialize clazakizumab for all indications other than cancer. On August 29, 2014, the Company received written
notice that BMS elected to terminate the license and collaboration agreement effective as of December 29, 2014 (the
“Termination Date”), at which time all rights to clazakizumab were returned to the Company.

In addition to the upfront payment of $85 million, the Company received an aggregate of $18.5 million in milestone
payments from BMS and was reimbursed for clinical supply and development costs of $26.9 million. The Company
recognized revenue relating to the deliverables in the agreement as a single unit of accounting using a time-based
proportional performance model. The proportional performance model results in the recognition of the upfront license
fee and other payments received under the arrangement over the estimated performance period based on the passage
of time. As a result of the termination of the agreement, the estimated development period was adjusted to conclude as
of the Termination Date, which was accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate. In the three and
six months ended June 30, 2014, the Company recognized revenue related to the BMS agreement in the amount of
$4.8 million and $9.5 million, respectively.

BMS was responsible through June 29, 2015 for all costs of the clinical trials that were initiated prior to August 29,
2014. On the Termination Date, all rights granted to BMS with respect to clazakizumab terminated and reverted to the
Company, and BMS granted to our wholly owned subsidiary, AlderBio Holdings LLC (“AlderBio”), an exclusive
license, with the right to grant sublicenses, under certain BMS intellectual property solely to make, have made, use,
import, export, offer for sale, and sell clazakizumab. BMS is obligated to transfer to the Company the Investigational
New Drug Application that BMS filed for clazakizumab with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration and all material
data related to clazakizumab that has not previously been transferred to the Company. The Company has the right to
purchase all of BMS’ existing manufactured drug supply of clazakizumab at cost and, at the Company’s request, BMS
is obligated to use diligent efforts to supply the Company with clazakizumab until the earlier of 20 months after
December 29, 2014, or the date that the Company obtains an alternative source of supply.

The Company will be required to pay a low single-digit royalty to BMS on sales of clazakizumab unless the

regulatory approval of clazakizumab is not based in whole or in part upon data from BMS’s Phase 2b clinical trial(s) in
rheumatoid arthritis and psoriatic arthritis. Aside from those clinical trial expenses that BMS is obligated to pay after
the Termination Date, the Company is responsible for performing and funding any new clazakizumab development
and clinical trial activities, which could significantly delay or result in the discontinuation of the development of
clazakizumab.

4. Net Loss Per Share
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Basic net loss per share is calculated by dividing net loss by the weighted average common shares outstanding during
the period, without consideration for common stock equivalents. Diluted net loss per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average common shares outstanding for the dilutive effect of common stock equivalents outstanding for
the period, determined using the treasury-stock method.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
Net loss (in thousands) $(17,655 ) $(7,401 ) $(32,308 ) $(12,796 )
Weighted-average common shares outstanding - basic and
diluted 38,162,226 18,556,561 37,536,331 9,827,883
Net loss per share - basic and diluted $(0.46 ) $(0.40 ) $(0.86 ) $(1.30 )

The following weighted average numbers of convertible preferred stock and outstanding stock options were excluded
from the calculation of diluted net loss per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 because
including them would have had an anti-dilutive effect. Therefore, basic and diluted net loss per share were the same
for all periods presented. The convertible preferred stock numbers shown in the table are on a common stock
equivalent basis.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
Convertible preferred stock — 8,503,550 — 14,674,560
Stock options 2,995,626 2,294,397 2,921,538 2,232,866

2,995,626 10,797,947 2,921,538 16,907,426
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5. Investments

Investments consisted of available-for-sale securities as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortizedunrealized unrealized Fair
Cost gains losses Value

(in thousands)
Type of security as of June 30, 2015
Negotiable certificates of deposit maturing in

one year or less $20,445 $ 2 $ — $20,447
Total available-for-sale securities $20.445 $ 2 $ — $20,447

Type of security as of December 31, 2014
Negotiable certificates of deposit maturing in

one year or less $9,085 $ — $ 8 $9,077
Total available-for-sale securities $9,085 $ — $ 8 $9,077

Realized gains and losses are determined based on the specific identification method and are reported in other income
in the condensed consolidated statement of operations. There were no realized gains or losses on sales of available-for
sale securities in the three or six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.

6. Fair Value Disclosures

The Company holds financial instruments that are measured at fair value which is determined according to a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs and assumptions used, and the valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows:

Level 1 Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level Inputs are quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or quoted prices for identical or

2 similar instruments in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs
and significant value drivers are observable in active markets.

Level Inputs are unobservable inputs based on the Company’s own assumptions and valuation techniques used to

3 measure assets and liabilities at fair value. The inputs require significant management judgment or estimation.

The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment

and may affect the valuation of fair value assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair value hierarchy

levels.

The Company established the fair value of its assets and liabilities using the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and
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established a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to measure fair value.

10
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The following table presents the Company’s financial instruments by level within the fair value hierarchy:

As of June 30, 2015

Cash equivalents

Money market funds

Short term investments
Negotiable certificates of deposit

As of December 31, 2014

Cash equivalents

Money market funds

Short term investments
Negotiable certificates of deposit

Fair Value Measurement Using
Level

Level 1 Level2 3 Total

(in thousands)

$402,843 $— $ — $402,843

— 20,447 — 20,447
$402,843 $20,447 $§ — $423,290

$46,113 $— $ — $46,113

— 9,077 — 9,077
$46,113  $9,077 $ — $55,190

The Company’s negotiable certificates of deposit are valued using fair value measurements that are considered to be

Level 2. The investment custodian provides the Company with valuations of its securities portfolio. The primary

source for the security valuation is Interactive Data Corporation (“IDC”), which evaluates securities based on market
data. IDC utilizes evaluated pricing models that vary by asset class and include available trade, bid, and other market

information. Generally, the methodology includes broker quotes, proprietary models, vast descriptive terms and
conditions databases, as well as extensive quality control programs. The custodian utilizes proprietary valuation
matrices for valuing all negotiable certificates of deposit.

Accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities are carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to

the short-term nature of these financial instruments.

11
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Item 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
This section should be read in conjunction with our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and related
notes included in Part I, Item 1 of this report and our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes
thereto and management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2014 included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Forward-Looking Statements

This discussion contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act

and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Forward-looking statements are identified by

words such as “believe,” “will,” “may,” “estimate,” “continue,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “should,” “plan,” “expect,” “predict,
or the negative of these terms or similar expressions. You should read these statements carefully because they discuss
future expectations, contain projections of future results of operations or financial condition, or state other
“forward-looking” information. These statements relate to our future plans, objectives, expectations, intentions and
financial performance and the assumptions that underlie these statements. These forward-looking statements are

subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in

the forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, those

discussed in this report in Part II, Item 1A — “Risk Factors,” and elsewhere in this report. Forward-looking statements are
based on our management’s beliefs and assumptions and on information currently available to our management. These
statements, like all statements in this report, speak only as of their date, and we undertake no obligation to update or
revise these statements in light of future developments.

29 ¢ LIS 29 ¢ LT3 L3 44‘

Overview

We are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company that discovers, develops and seeks to commercialize therapeutic
antibodies with the potential to meaningfully transform current treatment paradigms. We have developed a proprietary
antibody platform designed to select antibodies that have the potential to maximize efficacy as well as speed of onset
and durability of therapeutic response. In addition, we believe our ability to efficiently manufacture antibodies using
our yeast-based manufacturing technology, MabXpress, allows us to target diseases that traditionally have not been
addressed by antibodies. ALD403 was discovered by Alder scientists, has achieved clinical proof-of-concept for high
frequency migraine and we have initiated a Phase 2b dose-ranging trial for the preventative treatment of chronic
migraines in preparation for progression to Phase 3 trials if supported by the data.

ALDA403 is our novel monoclonal antibody targeted to calcitonin gene-related peptide, or CGRP, for migraine

prevention. ALD403 has been evaluated in two completed clinical trials and three ongoing clinical trials. The table
below summarizes the clinical trials completed to date or ongoing and the planned pivotal and Phase 2b trials.

12
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Study
Trial

Trial ~ Formulation Stage of Development Trial Population Locations  Subjects Status
ALD403 Infusion Phase 1 Healthy Subjects Australia 104 Completed
ALD403 Infusion Proof-of-Concept Trial High Frequency Migraine United States 163 Completed
ALD403 Infusion Phase 2b Chronic Migraine Various 600 On-going
ALD403 Infusion Pivotal High Frequency Migraine Various 600 Planned
ALD403 Infusion Pivotal Chronic Migraine Various 450 Planned
ALDA403 Self-administration Phase 1 Healthy Subjects Australia 60 On-going
ALDA403 Self-administration Phase 1 Healthy Subjects Australia 60 On-going
ALDA403 Self-administration Phase 2b High Frequency Migraine TBD 240 Planned

We have completed a three month double-blind, randomized, placebo-controlled proof-of-concept trial of ALD403 in
163 patients suffering from five to 14 migraine days per month, or high frequency migraine. We have initiated a Phase
2b dose-ranging trial for the preventative treatment of chronic migraines with an intravenous formulation and a Phase
1 study in healthy volunteers investigating different dose levels of ALD403 or placebo formulated for once per quarter
self-administration, which we expect to report top-line data from in the second half of 2015. Early in the second half
of 2015, we plan to initiate a pivotal, double-blind, placebo-controlled, randomized, dose-ranging clinical trial
utilizing an intravenous (IV) formulation of ALD403 administered quarterly for the treatment of both chronic and
high frequency migraine. Following the data from one of the ongoing Phase 1 studies, we plan to initiate a Phase 2b
double-blind, placebo-controlled, randomized, multi-dose, dose-ranging clinical trial utilizing ALD403 formulated for
self-administration aimed at quarterly dosing in high frequency migraine patients. This trial will commence in the
second half of 2015 with top-line data anticipated in the second half of 2016.

Clazakizumab, also known as ALD518, is a novel monoclonal antibody that inhibits the pro-inflammatory cytokine
interleukin-6, or IL-6, for the treatment of both rheumatoid arthritis, or RA, and psoriatic arthritis, or PsA. In
November 2009, we entered into a license and collaboration agreement with BMS, under which we granted BMS
worldwide exclusive rights to develop and commercialize clazakizumab for all indications other than cancer. On
August 29, 2014, BMS notified us that it had elected to terminate the license and collaboration agreement effective as
of December 29, 2014, or the Termination Date, at which time all rights to clazakizumab were returned to us. Under
the terms of the agreement, BMS was responsible for the costs of ongoing clinical studies, including the Phase 2b
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dose-ranging trial, until June 29, 2015. We are seeking a partner or other strategic alternatives for clazakizumab.

ALD1613 is a genetically engineered monoclonal antibody developed by us that is designed to specifically inhibit
Adrenocorticotropic Hormone, or ACTH, for the treatment of Cushing’s Disease. This disease is driven by long-term
exposure to cortisol as a result of increased expression of ACTH produced by a pituitary tumor. We believe a novel,
mechanism-based approach to address Cushing’s Disease using a monoclonal antibody targeted to ACTH that
diminishes the overproduction of cortisol with a sound safety profile would provide a significant advantage over the
current standard of care and provide an important new therapeutic option to both patients and physicians. ALD1613 is
currently at a preclinical stage of development.

We are continuing to evaluate other disease indications where therapeutic antibodies have not previously played a
role. We will continue to enhance our technologies to discover optimized product candidates that can be manufactured
efficiently on a very large scale. We may seek to monetize our technology platform by consummating partnerships
with leading biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies. We also intend to continue to deploy capital to selectively
develop our own portfolio of product candidates.
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We were incorporated in 2002 and have not generated any product revenue. Through June 30, 2015, our operations
have been primarily funded by $487.0 million of net proceeds in public offerings, $111.4 million in private
placements of our convertible preferred stock and $135.0 million in upfront payments, milestones and research and
development payments from our collaborators and government grants.

As of June 30, 2015, we had an accumulated deficit of $169.2 million. We expect to experience increasing operating
losses for the foreseeable future. We expect our expenses will increase substantially in connection with our ongoing
activities, as we:

conduct clinical trials of ALD403;

continue to evaluate our preclinical programs and advance at least one additional product candidate into the clinic;
enhance our proprietary antibody platform and conduct discovery and preclinical activities;

manufacture antibodies for our preclinical programs and clinical trials;

seek regulatory approval for our product candidates; and

operate as a public company.

We will not generate revenues from product sales unless and until we or our future collaborators successfully
complete development and obtain regulatory approval for one or more of our product candidates, which we expect
will take a number of years and is subject to significant uncertainty. If we obtain regulatory approval for ALD403 or
any future product candidate, we expect to incur significant commercialization expenses related to sales, marketing,
manufacturing and distribution to the extent that such costs are not paid by future collaborators. We will need to
obtain substantial additional sources of funding to develop ALD403 as currently contemplated. If such additional
funding is not available on favorable terms or at all, we may need to delay or reduce the scope of our ALD403
development program or grant rights in the United States, as well as outside the United States, to ALD403 to one or
more partners.

Financial Operations Overview
Revenues

We did not recognize any revenue in the three or six months ended June 30, 2015. We recognized $4.7 million and
$9.5 million in revenue for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, substantially all of which was
derived from our collaboration with BMS, which was terminated effective December 29, 2014. Upfront fees,
milestone payments and reimbursed clinical supply and development costs received under our collaboration
agreements are deferred and are recognized as revenues over the performance period using a time-based approach. As
a result of the early termination of the BMS agreement, the estimated performance period was adjusted to reflect the
December 29, 2014 termination date, which accelerated the recognition of revenue that had previously been deferred.
We will not recognize any additional future revenue under the agreement with BMS.
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We have not generated any revenues from the sale of products. In the future, we may generate revenues from product
sales and from collaboration agreements in the form of license fees, milestone payments, reimbursements for clinical
supply and development costs and royalties on product sales. We expect that any revenues we generate will fluctuate
from quarter to quarter as a result of the uncertain timing and amount of such payments and sales.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses represent costs incurred by us for the discovery and development of our product
candidates. The following items are included in research and development expenses:

-external costs under agreements with clinical research organizations, or CROs, contract manufacturing organizations,
or CMOs, and other significant third-party vendors or consultants used to perform preclinical, clinical and
manufacturing activities;

-internal costs including employee-related costs such as salaries, benefits, stock-based compensation expense, travel,
laboratory consumables and services for our research and development personnel; and

-allocated facilities, depreciation, and other expenses, which include rent and maintenance of facilities, information
technology services and other infrastructure expenses.
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We use our employee and infrastructure resources across multiple research and development programs directed
toward evaluating our monoclonal antibodies for selecting product candidates. We manage certain activities such as
preclinical toxicology studies, clinical trial operations and manufacture of product candidates through third-party
CROs, CMOs or other third-party vendors. We track our significant external costs by each product candidate. We also
track our human resource efforts on certain programs for purposes of billing our collaborators for time incurred at
agreed upon rates. We do not, however, assign or allocate to individual product candidates or development programs
our internal costs and we group these internal research and development activities into three categories:

Category Description

Preclinical discovery and development Research and development expenses incurred in activities substantially in
support of discovery of new targets through the selection of a single product
candidate. These activities encompass the discovery and translational
medicine functions, including pharmacokinetic and drug metabolism
preclinical studies, toxicology and early strain and assay development
activities.

Pharmaceutical operations Research and development expenses incurred related to manufacturing
preclinical study and clinical trial materials, including scale-up process
development and quality control activities.

Clinical development Research and development expenses incurred related to Phase 1, Phase 2 and
Phase 3 clinical trials, including regulatory affairs activities.

We plan to increase our research and development expenses for the foreseeable future as we continue the development
of ALD403 and evaluate the advancement of future product candidates into clinical development. The timing and
amount of research and development expenses incurred will depend largely upon the outcomes of current and future
clinical trials for our product candidates as well as the related regulatory requirements, manufacturing costs and any
costs associated with the advancement of our preclinical programs. We cannot determine with certainty the duration
and completion costs of the current or future clinical trials of our product candidates. The duration, costs and timing of
clinical trials and development of our product candidates will depend on a variety of factors, including:

the scope, rate of progress, and expense of our ongoing, as well as any additional, clinical trials and other research and
development activities;

€uture clinical trial results;

potential changes in government regulation; and

the timing and receipt of any regulatory approvals.

A change in the outcome of any of these variables with respect to the development of a product candidate could mean
a significant change in the costs and timing associated with the development of that product candidate.

General and Administrative Expenses
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General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and related benefits, including stock-based
compensation, related to our executive, business development, intellectual property, finance, human resources and
support functions. Other general and administrative expenses include allocated facility-related costs not otherwise
included in research and development expenses, travel expenses and professional fees for auditing, tax and legal
services, including intellectual property related legal services. We have incurred and expect to incur additional
expenses as a result of operating as a public company, including expenses related to compliance with the rules and
regulations of the SEC, and those of the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC, or NASDAQ, additional insurance expenses,
investor relations activities and other administrative and professional services.

Results of Operations
Comparison of the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
Revenues

We did not recognize any revenue in the three and six months ended June 30, 2015. Revenues for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2014 were $4.7 million and $9.5 million, respectively, and were derived primarily from our
collaboration agreement with BMS, which was terminated effective December 29, 2014. We will not recognize any
additional future revenue under the BMS collaboration agreement.
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Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses incurred in the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 were as
follows:

Three Months

Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2015 2014 9% change 2015 2014 % change

(dollars in (dollars in

thousands) thousands)
External costs:
ALD403 $6,259 $4291 46 % $11,195 $6,399 75 %
ALDI1613 1,629 — — 2,056 — —
Clazakizumab 57 528 (89 %) 18 995 (92 %)
Unallocated internal costs:
Preclinical discovery and development 3,195 2,906 10 % 6,330 5,793 9 %
Pharmaceutical operations 2,313 1,280 81 % 4,262 2,464 73 %
Clinical development 635 372 71 % 1,202 746 61 %

Total research and development expenses $14,088 $9,377 50 % $25,123 $16,397 53 %

Research and development expenses increased by $4.7 million, or 50%, for the three months ended June 30, 2015
compared to the same period of 2014. During the three months ended June 30, 2015, external costs for ALD403
increased $2.0 million. The increased level of spending was due to an additional $3.4 million in clinical trial costs
incurred to advance our Phase 2 program for migraine, offset by a $1.4 million decrease in manufacturing

costs. External costs for ALD1613 included an additional $1.6 million for costs related to drug supply to advance our
preclinical program for Cushing’s Disease. Unallocated internal costs also increased by $1.6 million due to an increase
in salaries expense and stock-based compensation in the 2015 period as a result of an increase in our research and
development headcount to support our planned pivotal trials.

Research and development expenses increased by $8.7 million, or 53%, for the six months ended June 30, 2015
compared to the same period of 2014. During the six months ended June 30, 2015, external costs for ALD403
increased $4.8 million. The increased level of spending was due to an additional $5.7 million in clinical trial costs
incurred to advance our Phase 2 program for migraine, offset by a $1.1 million decrease in manufacturing

costs. External costs for ALD1613 included an additional $2.1 million for costs related to drug supply to advance our
preclinical program for Cushing’s Disease. Unallocated internal costs also increased by $2.8 million due to an increase
in salaries expense and stock-based compensation in the 2015 period as a result of an increase in our research and
development headcount to support our planned pivotal trials.
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In August 2014, we regained the worldwide rights to clazakizumab from BMS. BMS was responsible through June
29, 2015 for all costs of the clinical trials that were initiated by BMS prior to August 29, 2014. We are seeking a
partner or other strategic alternatives for clazakizumab.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by $1.2 million, or 44%, for the three months ended June 30, 2015
compared to the same period of 2014. The increase was primarily due to increases in salaries and stock-based
compensation and additional administrative costs and fees to operate as a public company.

General and administrative expenses increased by $1.7 million, or 29%, for the six months ended June 30, 2015
compared to the same period of 2014. The increase was primarily due to increases in salaries and stock-based
compensation and additional administrative costs and fees to operate as a public company.

Interest Income

The increases in interest income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 compared to the same periods of
2014 were due to increases in the average balances of cash, cash equivalents and investments.

Foreign Currency Gain
We recognized a net foreign currency gain of $0.3 million for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2015.
We maintain a bank account denominated in British pounds for purposes of settling certain obligations arising outside

the United States.
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This gain primarily reflects the impact of an increase in the exchange rate for British pounds relative to U.S. dollars
during the three months ended June 30, 2015. We did not recognize a net foreign currency gain for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2014 because we did not maintain such bank account in 2014.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Due to our significant research and development expenditures, we have generated significant operating losses from
inception and we expect to incur significant operating losses in the future. We have funded our operations primarily
through sales of our equity securities and payments from our collaboration partners. As of June 30, 2015, we had
available cash, cash equivalents and investments of $428.4 million, which consisted of cash, money market funds and
negotiable certificates of deposit. Cash in excess of immediate requirements is invested with a view toward liquidity
and capital preservation, and we seek to minimize the potential effects of concentration and degrees of risk.

We are currently focusing our resources on development of ALD403 and on the preclinical development of
ALD1613. We may consider possible partnerships for our product candidates or sources of additional equity
financing. We believe that our available cash, cash equivalents and investments will be sufficient to meet our
projected operating requirements through 2017. We have based this estimate on assumptions that may prove to be
wrong, and we could utilize our available capital resources sooner than we currently expect. Furthermore, our
operating plan may change, and we may need additional funds to meet operational needs and capital requirements for
product development and commercialization sooner than planned. We currently have no credit facility or committed
sources of capital. Because of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with the development and
commercialization of our product candidates and the extent to which we may enter into additional collaborations with
third parties to participate in their development and commercialization, we are unable to estimate the amounts of
increased capital outlays and operating expenditures associated with our current and anticipated clinical trials. Our
future funding requirements will depend on many factors, as we:

initiate or continue clinical trials of ALD403, our novel monoclonal antibody for prevention of migraine;

seek a partner or other strategic alternatives for clazakizumab;

continue the research and development of our product candidates;

seek to discover additional product candidates;

seek regulatory approvals for our product candidates that successfully complete clinical trials;

establish a sales, marketing and distribution infrastructure and scale-up manufacturing capabilities to commercialize

products which receive regulatory approval;
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enhance operational, financial and information management systems and hire additional personnel, including
personnel to support development of our product candidates and, if a product candidate is approved, our
commercialization efforts; and

incur additional costs associated with being a public company.

We plan to continue to fund our operations and capital funding needs through equity, debt financing and/or new
collaborations. The sale of additional equity would result in additional dilution to our stockholders. The incurrence of
debt financing would result in debt service obligations and the instruments governing such debt could provide for
operating and financing covenants that would restrict our operations.

We may consider partnering one or more of our product candidates for further clinical development and
commercialization. To the extent that we raise additional capital through marketing and distribution arrangements or
other collaborations, strategic alliances or licensing arrangements with third parties, we may have to relinquish
valuable rights to our product candidates, future revenue streams, research programs or product candidates or to grant
licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us. If we do need to raise additional capital to fund our operations,
funding may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all. If we are not able to secure adequate additional
funding we may be forced to make reductions in spending, extend payment terms with suppliers, liquidate assets
where possible, and/or suspend or curtail planned programs. Any of these actions could harm our business, results of
operations and future prospects.
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Historical Cash Flow Trends

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods indicated:

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2015 2014

Net cash used in operating activities $(34,483) $(23,171)

Net cash used in investing activities (12,006 ) (10,357)

Net cash provided by financing activities 407,688 80,547
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities in the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 resulted primarily from our net
losses adjusted for non-cash charges and changes in components of working capital. Net cash used in operating
activities was $34.5 million during the six months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $23.2 million during the same
period of 2014. The $11.3 million increase in net cash used in operating activities in the six months ended June 30,
2015 compared to the same period of 2014 was driven primarily by an increase in net loss of $19.3 million and an
increase in prepaid manufacturing costs related to our ALD403 and ALD1613 programs under development of $4.3
million, offset by a decrease in deferred revenue of $9.3 million related to our former agreement with BMS, and by
other net changes in components of working capital.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $12.0 million in the six months ended June 30, 2015 due primarily to
purchases of investments, offset in part by sales and maturities of investments. Net cash used in investing activities
was $10.4 million in the six months ended June 30, 2014 due primarily to purchases of investments. Purchases of
property and equipment used cash of $0.6 million and $0.3 million in the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities in the six months ended June 30, 2015 was $407.7 million due primarily to
two underwritten public offerings of our common stock in which we received proceeds of $406.8 million net of
underwriting discounts, commissions and offering costs. Cash provided by financing activities in the six months
ended June 30, 2014 was $80.5 million due primarily to our IPO. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, we incurred $0.1

million and $0.3 million, respectively, in offering costs which were included in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements in the six months ended June 30, 2015.

Contractual Obligations
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Our contractual obligations as of June 30, 2015 were as follows:

Less Than More Than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
(in thousands)

Operating lease obligations(!) $1,354 $677 $ 677 $ — $ —
License agreements® 745 55 165 150 375
Purchase obligations®) 6,593 6,593 — — —
Contract manufacturing obligations® 7,611 7,611 — — —
Total contractual obligations $16,303 $14,936 $ 842 $ 150 $ 375

(1) Represents future minimum lease payments under our non-cancelable operating lease. The minimum lease
payments above do not include any related common area maintenance charges or real estate taxes.

(2) Some of our licensing agreements obligate us to pay a royalty on net sales of products utilizing licensed
technology. Such royalties are dependent on future product sales and are not provided for in the table above as they

are not estimable.
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(3) We enter into agreements in the normal course of business with contract research organizations for clinical trials
and with vendors for preclinical research studies and other services and products for operating purposes which are
cancelable at any time by us, generally upon 30 days prior written notice. These payments are not included in this
table of contractual obligations.

(4) Represents contractual obligations related to manufacturing our product candidates for use in our clinical trials,
including long-term stability studies.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates

Our management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements
requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported revenues
generated and expenses incurred during the reporting periods. Our estimates are based on our historical experience
and on various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. There have been no
significant and material changes in our critical accounting policies during the three months ended June 30, 2015, as
compared to those disclosed in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations - Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates” in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, as filed with the SEC. We believe that the accounting policies discussed
in our Annual Report on Form 10-K are critical to understanding our historical and future performance, as these
policies relate to the more significant areas involving management’s judgments and estimates.

Newly Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of recently issued accounting pronouncements, please see Note 2 to our condensed consolidated
financial statements, which are included in this report.

JOBS Act

As an “emerging growth company,” the Jumpstart our Business Startups Act, or the JOBS Act, allows us to delay
adoption of new or revised accounting pronouncements applicable to public companies until such pronouncements are
made applicable to private companies. As a result, our financial statements may not be comparable to the financial
statements of issuers who are required to comply with the effective date for new or revised accounting standards that
are applicable to public companies. We will no longer be able to take advantage of this exemption beginning on
December 31, 2015, when we will be deemed a large accelerated filer and, as a result, cease to be an “emerging growth
company.”

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk
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The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve our capital to fund our operations. We also seek to
maximize income from our investments without assuming significant risk. To achieve our objectives, we maintain a
portfolio of cash equivalents and investments in a variety of securities of high credit quality. As of June 30, 2015, we
had cash, cash equivalents and investments of $428.4 million consisting of cash, money market accounts and
negotiable certificates of deposit in highly rated financial institutions in the United States. A portion of our
investments may be subject to interest rate risk and could fall in value if market interest rates increase. However,
because our investments are primarily short-term in duration, we believe that our exposure to interest rate risk is not
significant and a 1% movement in market interest rates would not have a significant impact on the total value of our
portfolio. We actively monitor changes in interest rates.

Foreign Currency Risk

We contract for the conduct of certain clinical development activities with vendors in Australia and we contract for the
conduct of manufacturing activities in the United Kingdom. We are subject to exposure due to fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates in connection with these agreements. We manage a portion of these cash flow exposures through the
purchase of British pounds. Our holdings in British pounds are marked to market at the end of each period and any
change is recorded as gains or losses in the consolidated statements of operations. As of June 30, 2015, we held the
U.S. dollar equivalent of $4.5 million in British pounds. A hypothetical 10% change in the exchange rate between the
U.S. dollar and the British pound from the June 30, 2015 rate would have
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increased/decreased our unrealized foreign currency loss on our holdings of British pounds by approximately $0.4
million. We generally transfer funds to our Australian subsidiary to fund operating needs within 30 days of
disbursement. The cash balance held by our Australian subsidiary is denominated in Australian dollars and is also
subject to exposure due to fluctuations in exchange rates. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, we
recorded a foreign currency gain of $0.3 million in our consolidated statements of operations. For the three and six
months ended June 30, 2014, the effect of the exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates was not material.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive
Officer and our Senior Vice President, Finance, our principal financial officer, have evaluated our disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended)
prior to the filing of this quarterly report. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Senior Vice
President, Finance, have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report, our disclosure
controls and procedures were, in design and operation, effective.

Changes in internal control over financial reporting. There were no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting during the quarter ended June 30, 2015 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent limitation on the effectiveness of internal control. The effectiveness of any system of internal control over
financial reporting, including ours, is subject to inherent limitations, including the exercise of judgment in designing,
implementing, operating, and evaluating the controls and procedures, and the inability to eliminate misconduct
completely. Accordingly, any system of internal control over financial reporting, including ours, no matter how well
designed and operated, can only provide reasonable, not absolute assurances. In addition, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. We intend to
continue to monitor and upgrade our internal controls as necessary or appropriate for our business, but cannot assure
you that such improvements will be sufficient to provide us with effective internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal

Proceedings
From time to time, we may become involved in legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our business. We
are not presently a party to any legal proceedings that, if determined adversely to us, would individually or taken
together have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, financial condition or cash flows.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following risk factors, in addition to the other information contained in this report

on Form 10-Q, including the section of this report titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” and our financial statements and related notes. If any of the events described in the
following risk factors and the risks described elsewhere in this report occurs, our business, operating results and
financial condition could be seriously harmed. This report on Form 10-Q also contains forward-looking statements

that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in the
forward-looking statements as a result of factors that are described below and elsewhere in this report.

Risks Related to Our Business and the Development and Commercialization of Our Product Candidates

We have incurred significant losses since our inception and anticipate that we will continue to incur significant losses
for the foreseeable future.

We are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company. We do not currently have any products approved for sale, and we
continue to incur significant research and development and general and administrative expenses. We have incurred
significant operating losses in the past and expect to incur substantial and increasing losses for the foreseeable future.
For the six months ended June 30, 2015, our net loss was $32.3 million and as of June 30, 2015, we had an
accumulated deficit of $169.2 million.

To date, we have devoted substantially all of our efforts to research and development, including clinical trials, but
have not completed development or commercialized any product candidates. We anticipate that our expenses will
increase substantially as we:

continue the research and development of our product candidates, including clinical trials of ALD403;
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seek regulatory approvals for our product candidates that successfully complete clinical trials;

establish a sales, marketing and distribution infrastructure and scale-up manufacturing capabilities to commercialize
ALDA403 or any of our future product candidates if they receive regulatory approval; and

enhance operational, financial and information management systems and hire additional personnel, including
personnel to support development of our product candidates and, if a product candidate is approved, our
commercialization efforts.

To be profitable in the future, we and any of our future collaborators must succeed in developing and eventually
commercializing products with significant market potential. This will require success in a range of activities, including
advancing product candidates, completing clinical trials of product candidates, obtaining regulatory approval for these
product candidates and manufacturing, marketing and selling those products for which regulatory approval is
obtained. We are only in the preliminary stages of some of these activities. We and any of our future collaborators
may not succeed in these activities and may never generate revenues that are sufficient to be profitable in the future.

Drug development is a highly speculative undertaking and involves a substantial degree of uncertainty. We have never
generated any revenues from product sales and may never be profitable.

We have devoted substantially all of our financial resources and efforts to developing our technology platform,
identifying product candidates and conducting preclinical studies and clinical trials for our product candidates. We are
still in the early stages of developing our product candidates and have not completed the development of any products.
We have never generated revenues from the sale of any products. Our ability to generate revenues and achieve
profitability depends in large part on our ability, on our own or with any of our future collaborators, to successfully
complete the development of, obtain the necessary regulatory approvals for, and commercialize our product
candidates. We do not anticipate generating revenues from sales of products for the foreseeable future. Our ability to
generate future revenues from product sales depends on our and any of our future collaborators’ success in:

completing clinical development and obtaining regulatory approval for ALD403;
21
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entering into collaboration agreements with third parties with respect to our product candidates for their development
and commercialization in the United States or in international markets, and the continued financial and other support
of these third parties under such collaboration agreements;

launching and commercializing ALD403, if approved, and successfully establishing sales, marketing and distribution
infrastructure;

obtaining regulatory approvals for future product candidates that we discover and successfully develop;

establishing and maintaining supply and manufacturing relationships with third parties;

obtaining coverage and adequate reimbursement from third-party payors; and

maintaining, protecting, expanding and enforcing our intellectual property, including intellectual property we license
from third parties.

Because of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with biologic product development, we are unable to
predict the timing or amount of increased expenses and when we will be able to achieve or maintain profitability, if
ever. In addition, our expenses could increase beyond expectations if we are required by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, or FDA, or foreign regulatory agencies, to perform studies and trials in addition to those that we
currently anticipate, or if there are any delays in our or any of our future collaborators’ clinical trials or the
development of any of our product candidates. If one or more of the product candidates that we independently develop
is approved for commercial sale, we anticipate incurring significant costs associated with commercializing such
product candidates.

The termination of our clazakizumab collaboration agreement with BMS means that any further development of
clazakizumab will require significant alternative resources, and in the event that we do not find a collaborator or other
strategic alternative, we expect the development of clazakizumab to be discontinued for the foreseeable future.

On August 29, 2014, BMS terminated our collaboration agreement for the development and commercialization of
clazakizumab. The termination of this collaboration agreement became effective on December 29, 2014, and BMS is
not responsible for funding any new clazakizumab development and clinical trial activities undertaken after June 29,
2015. Any such further development will require significant resources to develop and commercialize clazakizumab,
and we do not believe that such further development is possible in the foreseeable future without a new collaborator or
other strategic alternative.
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We will need additional funds to support our operations, and such funding may not be available to us on acceptable
terms, or at all, which would force us to delay, reduce or suspend our research and development programs and other
operations or commercialization efforts.

We are focused on the advancement of ALD403 through the clinical development process, as well as the evaluation of
future product candidates. The completion of the development and the potential commercialization of our product
candidates, should they receive regulatory approval, will require substantial funds. We will need to obtain substantial
additional sources of funding to develop ALD403 as currently contemplated. If such additional funding is not
available on favorable terms or at all, we may need to delay or reduce the scope of our ALD403 development program
or grant rights in the United States, as well as outside the United States, to ALD403 to one or more partners. As of
June 30, 2015, we had $428.4 million in cash, cash equivalents and investments. We believe that our available cash,
cash equivalents and investments will be sufficient to fund our anticipated level of operations, including our ALD403
development program, through 2017. However, our future financing requirements will depend on many factors, some
of which are beyond our control, including the following:

the rate of progress, recruitment and cost of our clinical trials and clinical success for ALD403 and any future product
candidates;

the timing of, and costs involved in, seeking and obtaining approvals from the FDA and other regulatory authorities;

the costs of commercialization activities if any of our product candidates, such as ALD403, receive regulatory
approval, including sales, marketing and distribution infrastructure;

the degree and rate of market acceptance of any products launched by us or any of our future collaborators;

our ability to enter into additional collaboration, licensing, commercialization or other arrangements and the terms and
timing of such arrangements; and
22
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the emergence of competing technologies or other adverse market developments.

We do not have any material committed external source of funds or other support for our development efforts. Until
we can generate sufficient revenues to finance our cash requirements, which we may never do, we expect to finance
future cash needs through a combination of public or private equity offerings, debt financings, collaborations, strategic
alliances, licensing arrangements and other marketing and distribution arrangements. Additional financing may not be
available to us when we need it or it may not be available on favorable terms. If we raise additional capital through
marketing and distribution arrangements or other collaborations, strategic alliances or licensing arrangements with
third parties, we may have to relinquish certain valuable rights to our product candidates, technologies, future revenue
streams or research programs or grant licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us. If we raise additional capital
through public or private equity offerings, the ownership interest of our existing stockholders will be diluted, and the
terms of these securities may include liquidation or other preferences that adversely affect our stockholders’ rights. If
we raise additional capital through debt financing, we may be subject to covenants limiting or restricting our ability to
take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, buying or selling assets, making capital expenditures or
declaring dividends. If we are unable to obtain adequate financing when needed, we may have to delay, reduce the
scope of, suspend or eliminate one or more of our clinical trials or research and development programs or our
commercialization efforts.

In addition, our clinical trials for ALD403 may encounter manufacturing, enrollment or other issues that could cause
our development costs to increase more than we expect. We do not have sufficient cash to complete the clinical
development of any of our product candidates and will require additional funding in order to complete the
development activities required for regulatory approval of ALD403 or any future product candidates that we develop
independently. We intend to prioritize our development efforts on ALD403, both in terms of funding and attention of
management and our organization. Because successful development of our product candidates is uncertain, we are
unable to estimate the actual funds we will require to complete research and development and commercialize our
product candidates.

Furthermore, we may seek additional capital due to favorable market conditions or strategic considerations even if we
believe we have sufficient funds for our current or future operating plans.

If ALD403 is not successfully commercialized, our business will be harmed.

ALDA403 is our only product candidate we currently have in clinical trials. We have invested a significant portion of
our efforts and financial resources into the development of ALD403 to prevent migraines. Our ability to generate
revenues from products, which we do not expect to occur for the foreseeable future, if ever, will depend heavily on the
successful development, regulatory approval and eventual commercialization of our product candidates. The success
of these product candidates will depend on several factors, including the following:

43



Edgar Filing: ALDER BIOPHARMACEUTICALS INC - Form 10-Q

successful enrollment in, and completion of, clinical trials;

our ability to reach agreements with the FDA and other regulatory authorities on the appropriate regulatory path for
approval for ALD 403;

receipt of approvals from the FDA and similar regulatory authorities outside the United States for these product
candidates;

establishing commercial manufacturing arrangements with third parties;

successfully launching sales, marketing and distribution of any product candidate that may be approved, whether
alone or in collaboration with others;

acceptance of any approved product by the medical community, third-party payors and patients and others involved in
the reimbursement process, such as the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services in the United States and the
National Institute of Clinical Excellence in the United Kingdom;

effectively competing with other therapies;

achieving a continued acceptable safety profile of the product following approval, including intellectual property we
license from third parties; and

obtaining, maintaining, enforcing and defending intellectual property rights and claims.
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If we do not achieve one or more of these factors in a timely manner, or at all, we could experience significant delays
or an inability to successfully commercialize our product candidates, which would harm our business.

If clinical trials of our product candidates fail to demonstrate safety and efficacy to the satisfaction of the FDA or
similar regulatory authorities outside the United States or do not otherwise produce positive results, we may incur
additional costs or experience delays in completing, or ultimately be unable to complete, the development and
commercialization of our product candidates.

Before obtaining regulatory approval for the sale of our product candidates, we or any of our future collaborators must
conduct extensive clinical trials to demonstrate the safety and efficacy of our product candidates in humans. Clinical
trials are expensive, difficult to design and implement, can take many years to complete and are uncertain as to
outcome. A failure of one or more of such clinical trials could occur at any stage of evaluation. The outcome of
preclinical testing and early clinical trials may not be predictive of the success of later clinical trials, and interim
results of a clinical trial do not necessarily predict final results.

In some cases, we utilize novel mechanisms of action to treat diseases that have not previously been addressed by
antibody therapies. We or any of our future collaborators may experience numerous unforeseen events during, or as a
result of, clinical trials that could delay or prevent our or any of our future collaborators’ ability to receive regulatory
approval or commercialize our product candidates, including the following:

clinical trials of our product candidates may produce negative or inconclusive results, and we or any of our future
collaborators may decide, or regulators may require us, to conduct additional clinical trials or abandon product
development programs;

the number of patients required for clinical trials of our product candidates may be larger than we or any of our future
collaborators anticipate, enrollment in these clinical trials may be insufficient or slower than anticipated or patients
may drop out of these clinical trials at a higher rate than anticipated;

the cost of clinical trials of our product candidates may be greater than anticipated;

third-party contractors may fail to comply with regulatory requirements or meet their contractual obligations to us or
any of our future collaborators in a timely manner, or at all;

we or any of our future collaborators might have to suspend or terminate clinical trials of our product candidates for
various reasons, including a finding that our product candidates have unanticipated serious side-effects or other
unexpected characteristics or that the patients are being exposed to unacceptable health risks;
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regulators may not approve our or any of our future collaborators’ proposed clinical development plans;

regulators or institutional review boards may not authorize us, any of our future collaborators or our investigators to
commence a clinical trial or conduct a clinical trial at a prospective site;

regulators or institutional review boards may require that we, any of our future collaborators or our investigators
suspend or terminate clinical research for various reasons, including noncompliance with regulatory requirements; and

the supply or quality of our product candidates or other materials necessary to conduct clinical trials of our product
candidates may be insufficient or inadequate.

If we or any of our future collaborators are required to conduct additional clinical trials or other testing of our product
candidates beyond those currently contemplated, if we or any of our future collaborators are unable to successfully
complete clinical trials of our product candidates or other testing, if the results of these trials or tests are not positive
or are only modestly positive or if there are safety concerns, we or any of our future collaborators may:

be delayed in obtaining regulatory approval for our product candidates;

not obtain regulatory approval at all;

obtain regulatory approval for indications that are not as broad as intended;

have the product removed from the market after obtaining regulatory approval;

be subject to additional post-marketing testing requirements; or
24
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be subject to restrictions on how the product is distributed or used.

Our product development costs will also increase if we experience delays in testing or approvals. We do not know
whether any clinical trials will begin as planned, will need to be restructured or will be completed on schedule, or at
all. Significant clinical trial delays also could shorten any periods during which we or any of our future collaborators
may have the exclusive right to commercialize our product candidates or allow our competitors to bring products to
market before we or any of our future collaborators do, which would impair our or any of our future collaborators’
ability to commercialize our product candidates and harm our business and results of operations.

The results of clinical trials conducted at sites outside the United States may not be accepted by the FDA and the
results or clinical trials conducted at sites inside the United States may not be accepted by international regulatory
authorities.

We have conducted, and may in the future choose to conduct, one or more of our clinical trials outside the United
States. Regions that are planned for inclusion in the ALD403 Phase 2b clinical trials include Australia, New Zealand
and Canada. Although the FDA may accept data from clinical trials conducted outside the United States, acceptance
of this data is subject to certain conditions imposed by the FDA. For example, the clinical trial must be well-designed
and conducted and performed by qualified investigators in accordance with ethical principles. The study population
must also adequately represent the U.S. population, and the data must be applicable to the U.S. population and U.S.
medical practice in ways that the FDA deems clinically meaningful. Generally, the patient population for any clinical
trials conducted outside of the United States must be representative of the population for whom we intend to label the
product in the United States. In addition, while these clinical trials are subject to the applicable local laws, FDA
acceptance of the data will be dependent upon its determination that the trials also complied with all applicable U.S.
laws and regulations. There can be no assurance the FDA will accept data from trials conducted outside of the United
States. If the FDA does not accept the data from our or BMS’s international clinical trials, or if international regulatory
authorities do not accept the data from our or BMS’s U.S. clinical trials, it would likely result in the need for additional
trials, which would be costly and time-consuming and could delay or permanently halt the development of a product
candidate.

The development and commercialization of biologic products is subject to extensive regulation, and we may not
obtain regulatory approvals for any of our product candidates.

The clinical development, manufacturing, labeling, packaging, storage, recordkeeping, advertising, promotion, export,
import, marketing and distribution and other possible activities relating to ALD403 and any other product candidate
that we may develop in the future are subject to extensive regulation in the United States. Biologics, like ALD403,
require the submission of a Biologics License Application, or BLA, to the FDA and such product candidates are not
permitted to be marketed in the United States until approval from the FDA of a BLA for that product has been
obtained. A BLA must be supported by extensive preclinical and clinical data, as well as extensive information
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regarding chemistry, manufacturing and controls, or CMC, sufficient to demonstrate the safety, purity, potency and
effectiveness of the applicable product candidate to the satisfaction of the FDA. We have not submitted an application
for approval or obtained FDA approval for any product. This lack of experience may impede our ability to obtain
FDA approval in a timely manner, if at all, for ALD403 and our future product candidates.

Regulatory approval of a BLA is not guaranteed, and the approval process is an expensive and uncertain process that
may take several years. The FDA and foreign regulatory entities also have substantial discretion in the approval
process. The number and types of preclinical studies and clinical trials that will be required for BLA approval varies
depending on the product candidate, the disease or the condition that the product candidate is designed to target and
the regulations applicable to any particular product candidate. Despite the time and expense associated with
preclinical studies and clinical trials, failure can occur at any stage, and we could encounter problems that require us
to repeat or perform additional preclinical studies or clinical trials or generate additional CMC data. The FDA and
similar foreign authorities could delay, limit or deny approval of a product candidate for many reasons, including
because they:

may not deem the product candidate to be adequately safe or effective;

may not find the data from preclinical studies, clinical trials or CMC data to be sufficient to support a claim of safety
and efficacy;

may not approve the manufacturing processes or facilities associated with the product candidate;

may conclude that the long-term stability of the formulation of the drug product for which approval is being sought
has been sufficiently demonstrated;

may change approval policies or adopt new regulations; or
25
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may not accept a submission due to, among other reasons, the content or formatting of the submission.

To market any biologics outside of the United States, we and any of our future collaborators must comply with the
numerous and varying regulatory and compliance related requirements of other countries. Approval procedures vary
among countries and can involve additional product testing and additional administrative review periods, including
obtaining reimbursement and pricing approval in select markets. The time required to obtain approval in other
countries might differ from that required to obtain FDA approval. The regulatory approval process in other countries
may include all of the risks associated with FDA approval as well as additional, presently unanticipated, risks.
Regulatory approval in one country does not ensure regulatory approval in another, but a failure or delay in obtaining
regulatory approval in one country may negatively impact the regulatory process in others, including the risk that our
product candidates may not be approved for all indications requested and that such approval may be subject to
limitations on the indicated uses for which the product may be marketed.

We face substantial competition, and others may discover, develop or commercialize products before or more
successfully than we do.

The development and commercialization of new therapeutic products is highly competitive. We face competition with
respect to our current product candidates, and will face competition with respect to product candidates that we may
seek to develop or commercialize in the future, from major pharmaceutical companies, specialty pharmaceutical
companies and biotechnology companies worldwide. In addition, our ability to compete may be affected in many
cases by insurers or other third-party payors seeking to encourage the use of biosimilar products, which are expected
to become available over the coming years. Many of our competitors are large pharmaceutical companies that have a
greater ability to reduce prices for their competing drugs in an effort to maintain or gain market share and undermine
the value proposition that drugs commercialized by us might otherwise be able to offer to payors.

Potential competitors also include academic institutions, government agencies and other public and private
organizations that conduct research, seek patent protection and establish collaborative arrangements for research,
development, manufacturing and commercialization. Many of these competitors are attempting to develop
therapeutics for our target indications.

Currently in the United States, there are relatively few medications approved for the prevention of high frequency and
chronic migraines. Most of the medications used today are generics that are prescribed for abortive treatment of
migraines. Botox is approved for the prevention of chronic migraine but is also prescribed for high frequency
migraine. There are also several other companies, including Amgen, Lilly and Labrys Biologics, or Labrys, which was
acquired by Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd. in July 2014, that have ongoing clinical trials for CGRP blocking
therapies using monoclonal antibodies similar to ALD403. Other companies may be in later stages of development
than we are or may progress their product candidates through clinical trials faster than our product candidates and,
therefore, may obtain FDA or other regulatory approval for their products before we obtain approval for ours. For
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example, we are aware that Amgen has initiated its Phase 2b clinical trial and may be able to initiate Phase 3 clinical
trials as early as 2015.

Clazakizumab has been developed for the treatment of the autoimmune disorders rheumatoid arthritis, or RA, and
psoriatic arthritis, or PsA. Several large pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies currently market and sell
biologics for the treatment of RA, including BMS’s Orencia. The current standard of care for the treatment of RA after
the immunosuppressive drug methotrexate, or MTX, is biologic therapy. Currently the market for biologic therapy is
dominated by anti-TNFs, primarily Humira and Enbrel. In addition, there are several other agents currently in
development, including monoclonal antibody therapies that modulate IL-6-biology and other oral medications. As a
result, marketing clazakizumab may be difficult in this competitive market.

Many of our competitors, including a number of large pharmaceutical companies that compete directly with us, have
significantly greater financial resources and expertise in research and development, manufacturing, preclinical testing,
conducting clinical trials, obtaining regulatory approvals and marketing approved products than we do. Our
competitors may develop products that are more effective, safer, more convenient or less costly than any that we are
developing or that would render our product candidates obsolete or non-competitive. It is possible that our competitors
might get FDA or other regulatory approval for their products before us. Mergers and acquisitions in the
pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries may result in even more resources being concentrated among a smaller
number of our competitors. Smaller or early stage companies may also prove to be significant competitors,
particularly through collaborative arrangements with large and established companies. These third parties compete
with us in recruiting and retaining qualified scientific and management personnel, establishing clinical trial sites and
patient enrollment for clinical trials, as well as in acquiring technologies complementary to, or necessary for, our
programs.
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Delays in the enrollment of patients in our clinical trials could increase our development costs and delay completion
of the trials and delays in enrollment of patients in any of our future collaborators’ clinical trials could delay
completion of any of our future collaborators’ trials.

We may not be able to initiate or continue clinical trials for our product candidates if we are unable to locate and
enroll a sufficient number of eligible patients to participate in these trials as required by the FDA or other regulatory
authorities. Even if we are able to enroll a sufficient number of patients in our clinical trials, if the pace of enrollment
is slower than we expect, the development costs for our product candidates may increase and the completion of our
trials may be delayed or our trials could become too expensive to complete.

For example, our Phase 2b clinical trial of AL D403 for the treatment of chronic migraine sufferers is expected to
enroll approximately 600 patients at more than 60 sites throughout the world and our planned Phase 2b clinical trial
for ALDA403 for the treatment of high frequency migraine sufferers is expected to enroll approximately 240 patients.
We have never previously conducted a trial of this magnitude and can provide no assurance that we will be able to
enroll patients at a sufficient pace to complete the clinical trials within our projected time frame. Completing future
migraine trials will require us to continue to activate new clinical trial sites and to enroll patients at forecasted rates at
both new and existing clinical trial sites. Our forecasts regarding the rates of clinical site activation and patient
enrollment at those sites are based on a number of assumptions, including assumptions based on experience with our
last ALD403 clinical trial. However, there can be no assurance that those forecasts will be accurate or that we will
complete, following collection of six month data, our next ALD403 trials on schedule. We anticipate obtaining
primary endpoint data from the chronic migraine trial in the second half of 2015 and from the high frequency trial in
the first half of 2016. During the initial months of this planned clinical trial, the number of clinical sites activated and
the number of patients enrolled at each clinical site per month could be lower than we have forecasted and, as a result,
we might need to make a number of adjustments to the clinical trial plan, including increasing the number of clinical
trial sites. We can provide no assurance that those adjustments will be sufficient to enable us to complete the study
within our anticipated time frame. If we experience delays in enrollment, our ability to complete the study could be
materially adversely affected.

While the Phase 2b, dose-ranging clinical trial for clazakizumab in RA has been fully enrolled with approximately
140 patients, any future collaborator or other party developing clazakizumab will need to recruit over 1,000 patients at
numerous sites throughout the world to complete the multiple Phase 3 trials that would be required by the FDA for
approval of clazakizumab in RA. There can be no assurance that any other party will commit the resources required to
activate the number of trial sites, and enroll the number of patients, required to complete these clinical trials in a
timely manner or at all. Even if any such other party commits significant resources to activating sites and enrolling
RA patients, the pace of enrollment could be adversely affected by competition with other trials enrolling RA patients.
A slower pace of enrollment could increase the development costs for clazakizumab which could adversely affect the
development of clazakizumab in RA, or at all.

If serious adverse side-effects, or SAEs, are identified during the development of any of our product candidates, we or
any of our future collaborators may need to abandon development of that product candidate.
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Our lead product candidate is still in clinical development and their risk of failure is high. It is impossible to predict
when or if any of our product candidates will prove effective and safe enough to receive regulatory approval.

With respect to ALD403, while we have observed few SAEs to date, ALD403 has only been evaluated in a limited
number of patients. The observed SAEs to date include inguinal hernia, kidney infection, transient ischemic attack,
which is a precursor to stroke, conversion disorder, which is a mental health condition in which a person has
blindness, paralysis, or other nervous system symptoms that cannot be explained by medical evaluation, chest pain,
shortness of breath and wound infection. Each of these events was observed a single time in the ALD403 trial. The
clinical investigator concluded that all of these events were found to be unrelated to ALD403. We have observed some
itching and redness injection-site reactions (ISRs) in our Phase 1 study of a subcutaneous injection of

ALD403. Additional studies or requirements from the FDA for future studies may be necessary to address these ISRs.

There can be no assurance that our planned trials for ALD403 will not fail due to safety issues. In such an event, we
might need to abandon development of ALD403.

The manufacture of our product candidates is complex and we may encounter difficulties in production. If we or any
of our third-party manufacturers encounter such difficulties, our ability to provide supply of our product candidates for
clinical trials or our products for patients, if approved, could be delayed or stopped.

The process of manufacturing our products is complex, highly-regulated and subject to multiple risks. The
manufacture of biologics involves complex processes, including developing cells or cell systems to produce the
biologic, growing large quantities of such cells and harvesting and purifying the biologic produced by them. As a
result, the cost to manufacture biologics is generally far
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higher than traditional small molecule chemical compounds, and the biologics manufacturing process is less reliable
and is difficult to reproduce. Manufacturing biologics, such as ALD 403, is highly susceptible to product loss due to
contamination, equipment failure, improper installation or operation of equipment, vendor or operator error,
inconsistency in yields, variability in product characteristics and difficulties in scaling the production process. Even
minor deviations from normal manufacturing processes could result in reduced production yields, product defects and
other supply disruptions. If microbial, viral or other contaminations are discovered in our product candidates or in the
manufacturing facilities in which our product candidates are made, such manufacturing facilities may need to be
closed for an extended period of time to investigate and remedy the contamination. We utilize third-party contract
manufacturers to produce ALD403 using our proprietary yeast production technology.

The manufacturing facilities in which our product candidates are made could be adversely affected by equipment
failures, labor shortages, natural disasters, power failures and numerous other factors. There are risks associated with
scaling-up manufacturing to commercial scale including, among others, cost overruns, potential problems with
process scale-up, process reproducibility, stability issues, lot consistency and timely availability of raw materials.
Even if we or any of our future collaborators obtain regulatory approval for any of our product candidates, there is no
assurance that manufacturers will be able to manufacture the approved product to specifications acceptable to the FDA
or other regulatory authorities, to produce it in sufficient quantities to meet the requirements for the potential launch of
the product or to meet potential future demand. If our or any of our future collaborators’ manufacturers are unable to
produce sufficient quantities of an approved product for commercialization, commercialization efforts would be
impaired, which would have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and growth
prospects.

ALDA403 is currently produced for us by a third-party contract manufacturer using a small-scale process that would not
support commercialization of ALD403. We plan to transfer our manufacturing processes to a commercial
manufacturer. Scaling up a biologic manufacturing process is a difficult and uncertain task, and we may not be
successful in transferring our production system or the manufacturer may not have the necessary capabilities to
complete the implementation and development process. If we are unable to adequately validate or scale-up the
manufacturing process for ALD403 with our current manufacturer, we will need to transfer to another manufacturer
and complete the manufacturing validation process, which can be lengthy. If we are able to adequately validate and
scale-up the manufacturing process for ALD403 or other product candidates with a contract manufacturer, we will still
need to negotiate with such contract manufacture an agreement for commercial supply and it is not certain we will be
able to come to agreement on terms acceptable to us.

Even though clazakizumab has been administered to over 1,000 patients, the MabXpress production system is a
non-traditional antibody production platform and as we or any of our future collaborators produce product in
commercial quantities, we or any such collaborators may experience unforeseen safety or other manufacturing issues
which would adversely affect the commercialization of clazakizumab.

Even if our product candidates receive regulatory approval, they may fail to achieve the degree of market acceptance
by physicians, patients, healthcare payors and others in the medical community necessary for commercial success.
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If any of our product candidates receive regulatory approval, they may nonetheless fail to gain sufficient market
acceptance by physicians, patients, healthcare payors and others in the medical community. The degree of market
acceptance of our product candidates, if approved for commercial sale, will depend on a number of factors, including
the following:

the efficacy and potential advantages compared to alternative treatments;

the prevalence and severity of any side-effects;

the price we or any of our future collaborators charge for our products;

the availability of third-party coverage and adequate reimbursement;

the convenience and ease of administration compared to alternative treatments;

the willingness of the target patient population to try new therapies and of physicians to prescribe these new therapies;
and

the size and effectiveness of our sales, marketing and distribution support.

If our product candidates are approved and do not achieve an adequate level of acceptance, we may not generate
significant product revenues and we may not become profitable on a sustained basis.
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We currently have no sales or distribution personnel or infrastructure and only limited marketing capabilities. If we
are unable to develop a sales, marketing and distribution infrastructure on our own or through collaborations or other
marketing arrangements, we will not be successful in commercializing ALD403 or any of our future products.

We do not currently have sales or distribution capabilities and have limited experience in the sale, marketing and
distribution of therapeutic products. To achieve commercial success for any approved product, we must either develop
a sales and marketing organization or outsource these functions to third parties. We plan to establish a sales force in
the United States targeting high-prescribing neurologists and headache centers and work with collaborators in
international markets to commercialize ALD403 globally, if it is approved.

There are risks involved with both establishing our own sales and marketing capabilities and entering into
arrangements with third parties to perform these services. For example, recruiting and training a sales force is
expensive and time-consuming and could delay any product launch. If the commercial launch of a product for which
we recruit a sales force and establish marketing capabilities is delayed or does not occur for any reason, we would
have prematurely or unnecessarily incurred these commercialization expenses. This may be costly, and our investment
would be lost if we do not have another product to sell in the same specialty market.

We also may not be successful entering into arrangements with third parties to sell and market our product candidates
or may be unable to do so on terms that are favorable to us. We likely will have little control over such third parties,
and any of them may fail to devote the necessary resources and attention to sell and market our products effectively
and could damage our reputation. If we do not establish sales and marketing capabilities successfully, either on our
own or in collaboration with third parties, we will not be successful in commercializing our product candidates.

If we are able to commercialize any product candidates, the products may become subject to unfavorable pricing
regulations, third-party reimbursement practices or healthcare reform initiatives, thereby harming our business.

The regulations that govern marketing approvals, pricing and reimbursement for new therapeutic products vary widely
from country to country. Some countries require approval of the sale price of a product before it can be marketed. In
many countries, the pricing review period begins after marketing or product licensing approval is granted. In some
foreign markets, prescription pharmaceutical pricing remains subject to continuing governmental control even after
initial approval is granted. As a result, we or any of our future collaborators might obtain regulatory approval for a
product in a particular country, but then be subject to price regulations that delay commercial launch of the product
and negatively impact the revenues we are able to generate from the sale of the product in that country. Adverse
pricing limitations may hinder our ability to recoup our investment in our products, even if our product candidates
obtain regulatory approval.
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Our and any of our future collaborators’ ability to commercialize any products successfully also will depend in part on
the extent to which coverage and adequate reimbursement for these products and related treatments becomes available
from government health administration authorities, private health insurers and other third-party payors. Third-party
payors decide which medications they will cover and establish reimbursement levels. The primary focus in the U.S.
healthcare industry and elsewhere is cost containment. Government authorities and these third-party payors have
attempted to control costs by limiting coverage and the amount of reimbursement for particular medications.
Increasingly, third-party payors are requiring that companies provide them with predetermined discounts from list
prices and are challenging the prices charged for medical products. We cannot be sure that reimbursement will be
available for any product that we or any of our future collaborators commercialize and, if reimbursement is available,
what the level of reimbursement will be. Reimbursement may impact the demand for, or the price of, any product for
which we or any of our future collaborators obtain approval. Obtaining coverage and adequate reimbursement for our
products may be particularly difficult because of the higher prices often associated with products administered under
the supervision of a physician. If reimbursement is not available or is available only to limited levels, we or any of our
future collaborators may not be able to successfully commercialize any product that has been approved.

There may be significant delays in obtaining reimbursement for approved products, and coverage may be more limited
than the purposes for which the product is approved by the FDA or regulatory authorities in other countries.
Moreover, eligibility for reimbursement does not imply that any product will be paid for in all cases or at a rate that
covers our or any of our future collaborators’ costs, including research, development, manufacture, sale and
distribution. Interim payments for new products, if applicable, may also not be sufficient to cover our or any of our
future collaborators’ costs and may not be made permanent. Payment rates may vary according to the use of the
product and the clinical setting in which it is used, may be based on payments allowed for lower cost products that are
already reimbursed and may be incorporated into existing payments for other services. Net prices for products may be
reduced by mandatory discounts or rebates required by government healthcare programs or private payors and by any
future relaxation of laws that presently restrict imports of products from countries where they may be sold at lower
prices than in the United States. Private third-party payors often rely upon Medicare coverage policy and payment
limitations in setting their own reimbursement policies. Our or any of our future collaborators’ inability to promptly
obtain coverage and profitable payment rates
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from both government funded and private payors for newly developed products could have a material adverse effect
on our operating results, our ability to raise capital needed to commercialize products and our overall financial
condition.

We may not be successful in our efforts to use and enhance our proprietary antibody platform to create a pipeline of
product candidates and develop commercially successful products.

We are using our proprietary antibody platform for the selection and manufacturing of monoclonal antibodies. We
used this platform to create our lead product candidate, ALD403, as well as clazakizumab and ALD1613 and the other
future product candidates that we are currently evaluating. We are at an early stage of development and our platform
has not yet, and may never, lead to approved or commercially successful products. Even if we are successful in
continuing to build our pipeline, the future product candidates that we evaluate may not be suitable for clinical
development, including as a result of their harmful side-effects, limited efficacy or other characteristics that make it
unlikely such product candidates will receive regulatory approval or achieve commercial success. If we do not
successfully develop and commercialize product candidates using our proprietary antibody platform, we may not be
able to obtain product or collaboration revenues in future periods, which would harm our business and prospects.

Product liability lawsuits against us could cause us to incur substantial liabilities and to limit commercialization of any
products that we may develop.

We face an inherent risk of product liability exposure related to the testing of our product candidates in human clinical
trials and will face an even greater risk if we commercially sell any products that we may develop. If we cannot
successfully defend ourselves against claims that our product candidates or products caused injuries, we will incur
substantial liabilities. Regardless of merit or eventual outcome, liability claims may result in:

decreased demand for any product candidates or products that we or any of our future collaborators may develop;

injury to our reputation and significant negative media attention;

withdrawal of patients from clinical trials or cancellation of trials;

significant costs to defend the related litigation;

substantial monetary awards;
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loss of revenues; and

the inability to commercialize any products that we may develop.

We currently have $20 million in product liability insurance coverage for our clinical trials, which may not be
adequate to cover all liabilities that we may incur. Insurance coverage is increasingly expensive. We may not be able
to maintain insurance coverage at a reasonable cost or in an amount adequate to satisfy any liability that may arise.

We may expend our limited resources to pursue a particular product candidate or disease and fail to capitalize on
product candidates or diseases that may be more profitable or for which there is a greater likelihood of success.

Because we have limited financial and managerial resources, we focus our research programs and product candidates
for a specific disease. As a result, we may forego or delay pursuit of opportunities with other product candidates or
other diseases that may later prove to have greater commercial potential. Our resource allocation decisions may cause
us to fail to capitalize on viable commercial products or profitable market opportunities. Our spending on current and
future research and development programs and product candidates for specific diseases may not yield any
commercially viable products.

If we do not accurately evaluate the commercial potential for a particular product candidate in the right disease, we
may relinquish valuable rights to that product candidate through collaboration, licensing or other royalty arrangements
in cases in which it would have been advantageous for us to retain sole development and commercialization rights.

If we do not successfully enter into future collaborations for the development and commercialization of product
candidates our business may be harmed.

We may choose to enter into collaboration agreements with third parties with respect to our product candidates,
including ALD403, for their development and commercialization in the United States or in international markets. We
will have limited control over the amount and timing of resources that any of our future collaborators dedicate to the
development or commercialization of our
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product candidates. Our ability to generate revenues from these arrangements will depend in part on any such
collaborators’ abilities to successfully perform the functions assigned to them in these arrangements.

Collaborations involving our product candidates are subject to numerous risks, which may include the following:

collaborators may have significant discretion in determining the efforts and resources that they will apply to
collaborations;

collaborators may not pursue development and commercialization of our product candidates or may elect not to
continue or renew development or commercialization programs based on clinical trial results, changes in their
strategic focus due to the acquisition of competitive products, availability of funding or other external factors, such as
a business combination that diverts resources or creates competing priorities;

collaborators may delay clinical trials, provide insufficient funding for a clinical trial, stop a clinical trial, abandon a
product candidate, repeat or conduct new clinical trials or require a new formulation of a product candidate for
clinical testing;

collaborators could independently develop, or develop with third parties, products that compete directly or indirectly
with our products or product candidates;

a collaborator with marketing and distribution rights to one or more products may not commit sufficient resources to
their marketing and distribution;

collaborators may not properly maintain or defend our intellectual property rights or may use our intellectual property
or proprietary information in a way that gives rise to actual or threatened litigation that could jeopardize or invalidate
our intellectual property or proprietary information or expose us to potential liability;

disputes may arise between us and a collaborator that cause the delay or termination of the research, development or
commercialization of our product candidates or that result in costly litigation or arbitration that diverts management
attention and resources;

collaborations may be terminated and, if terminated, may result in a need for additional capital to pursue further
development or commercialization of the applicable product candidates; and

collaborators may own or co-own intellectual property covering our products that results from our collaborating with
them, and in such cases, we would not have the exclusive right to commercialize such intellectual property.
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Any termination, such as the termination by BMS of our clazakizumab collaboration agreement, or disruption of any
future collaboration could result in delayed development of product candidates, increased cost to develop product
candidates or termination of development of a product candidate.

We rely on third parties to conduct and support our clinical trials, and those third parties may not perform
satisfactorily, including failing to meet deadlines for the completion of such trials.

We do not independently conduct clinical trials for our product candidates. We rely on third parties, such as contract
research organizations, or CROs, clinical data management organizations, medical institutions and clinical
investigators, to perform this function. Our reliance on these third parties for clinical development activities reduces
our control over these activities but does not relieve us of our responsibilities. Furthermore, some of the sites for our
clinical trials are outside the United States. The performance of these sites may be adversely affected by various
issues, including less advanced medical infrastructure, lack of familiarity with conducting clinical trials in accordance
with U.S. standards, insufficient training of personnel, communication difficulties or change in local regulations. We
remain responsible for ensuring that each of our clinical trials is conducted in accordance with the general
investigational plan and protocols for the study. Moreover, the FDA requires us to comply with standards, commonly
referred to as good clinical practices, or GCP, for conducting, recording and reporting the results of clinical trials to
assure that data and reported results are credible and accurate and that the rights, integrity and confidentiality of
patients in clinical trials are protected. Furthermore, these third parties may also have relationships with other entities,
including our competitors. If these third parties do not successfully carry out their contractual duties, meet expected
deadlines or conduct our clinical trials in accordance with regulatory requirements or our stated protocols, we will not
be able to obtain, or may be delayed in obtaining, regulatory approvals for our product candidates and will not be able
to, or may be delayed in our efforts to, successfully commercialize our products.
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We also rely on other third parties to store and distribute supplies for our clinical trials. Any performance failure on
the part of our existing or future distributors could delay clinical development or regulatory approval of our product
candidates or commercialization of our products, producing additional losses and depriving us of potential product
revenues.

We rely on third-party contract manufacturing organizations, or CMOs, to manufacture and supply ALD403. If one of
our suppliers or manufacturers fails to perform adequately or fulfill our needs, we may be required to incur significant
costs and devote significant efforts to find new suppliers or manufacturers and may also face delays in the
development and commercialization of our product candidates.

We currently do not own manufacturing facilities for clinical-scale manufacturing of our product candidates and we
rely upon third-party CMOs to manufacture and supply drug product for our clinical trials. The manufacture of
pharmaceutical products in compliance with the FDA’s current good manufacturing practices, or cGMP, requires
significant expertise and capital investment, including the development of advanced manufacturing techniques and
process controls. Manufacturers of pharmaceutical products often encounter difficulties in production, including
difficulties with production costs and yields, quality control, including stability of the product candidate and quality
assurance testing, shortages of qualified personnel, as well as compliance with strictly enforced cGMP requirements,
other federal and state regulatory requirements and foreign regulations. If our manufacturers were to encounter any of
these difficulties or otherwise fail to comply with their obligations to us or under applicable regulations, our ability to
provide study drugs in our clinical trials would be jeopardized. Any delay or interruption in the supply of clinical trial
materials could delay the completion of our clinical trials, increase the costs associated with maintaining our clinical
trial programs and, depending upon the period of delay, require us to commence new trials at significant additional
expense or terminate the trials completely.

All manufacturers of our product candidates must comply with cGMP requirements enforced by the FDA through its
facilities inspection program. These requirements include, among other things, quality control, quality assurance and
the maintenance of records and documentation. Manufacturers of our product candidates may be unable to comply
with these cGMP requirements and with other FDA, state and foreign regulatory requirements. The FDA or similar
foreign regulatory agencies may also implement new standards at any time, or change their interpretation and
enforcement of existing standards for manufacture, packaging or testing of products. We have little control over our
manufacturers’ compliance with these regulations and standards. A failure to comply with these requirements may
result in fines and civil penalties, suspension of production, suspension or delay in product approval, product seizure
or recall or withdrawal of product approval. If the safety of any product supplied is compromised due to our
manufacturers’ failure to adhere to applicable laws or for other reasons, we may not be able to obtain regulatory
approval for or successfully commercialize our products and we may be held liable for any injuries sustained as a
result. Any of these factors could cause a delay of clinical trials, regulatory submissions, approvals or
commercialization of our product candidates, entail higher costs or impair our reputation.

We currently rely on Fujifilm Diosynth Biotechnologies and Ajinomoto Althea Inc. to manufacture and provide us
with clinical supplies of ALD403. Our agreements do not provide for an entire supply of the drug product necessary
for all anticipated clinical trials or for full-scale commercialization. If we and our suppliers cannot agree to the terms
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and conditions for provision of the drug product necessary for our clinical and commercial supply needs, or if either
terminates their agreement in response to a breach by us or otherwise becomes unable to fulfill its supply obligations,
our clinical trials could be delayed until a qualified alternative supplier is identified, the manufacturing process is
qualified and validated and we have agreed on the terms and conditions for such alternative supplier to supply product
for us, which would delay the development and impair the commercialization of ALD403. ALD403 is a biologic and
therefore require complex production processes. Transferring the production process to a new manufacturer would be
particularly difficult, time-consuming and expensive and may not yield comparable product. Although alternative
sources of supply exist, the number of third-party suppliers with the necessary manufacturing and regulatory expertise
and facilities necessary to manufacture ALD403 and any other product candidates we may develop is limited, and
may be expensive and take a significant amount of time to arrange for alternative suppliers. New suppliers of any
product candidate would be required to qualify under applicable regulatory requirements. Obtaining the necessary
FDA approvals or other qualifications under applicable regulatory requirements could result in a significant
interruption of supply and could require the new manufacturer to bear significant additional costs which may be
passed on to us.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly, which makes our future operating results difficult to predict and
could cause our operating results to fall below expectations or our guidance.

Our quarterly and annual operating results have fluctuated in the past and may fluctuate significantly in the future,
which makes it difficult for us to predict our future operating results. From time to time, we may enter into
collaboration agreements with other companies that include development funding and significant upfront and
milestone payments, and we expect that amounts earned from our collaboration agreements will continue to be an
important source of our revenues. Accordingly, our revenues will depend on development funding and the
achievement of development and clinical milestones under any of our future collaboration arrangements, as well as
any potential future license agreements and sales of our products, if approved. These upfront and milestone payments
may
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vary significantly from period to period and any such variance could cause a significant fluctuation in our operating
results from one period to the next.

Our operating results may fluctuate due to a variety of other factors, many of which are outside of our control and may
be difficult to predict, including the following:

the timing and cost of, and level of investment in, research and development activities relating to our product
candidates, which may change from time to time;

the cost of manufacturing our product candidates, which may vary depending on the quantity of production and the
terms of our agreements with manufacturers;

expenditures that we will or may incur to acquire or develop additional product candidates and technologies;

the level of demand for our product candidates, should they receive approval, which may vary significantly;

future accounting pronouncements or changes in our accounting policies;

the timing and success or failure of clinical trials for our product candidates or competing product candidates, or any
other change in the competitive landscape of our industry, including consolidation among our competitors or partners;
and

the risk/benefit profile, cost and reimbursement policies with respect to our products candidates, if approved, and
existing and potential future drugs that compete with our product candidates.

The cumulative effects of these factors could result in large fluctuations and unpredictability in our quarterly and
annual operating results. As a result, comparing our operating results on a period-to-period basis may not be
meaningful. Investors should not rely on our past results as an indication of our future performance. This variability
and unpredictability could also result in our failing to meet the expectations of industry or financial analysts or
investors for any period. If our revenues or operating results fall below the expectations of analysts or investors or
below any forecasts we may provide to the market, or if the forecasts we provide to the market are below the
expectations of analysts or investors, the price of our common stock could decline substantially. Such a stock price
decline could occur even when we have met any previously publicly stated revenues or earnings guidance we may
provide.
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Our future success depends on our ability to retain our senior executive officers and other key executives and to
attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel.

We are highly dependent on our senior executive officer and the other principal members of our executive and

scientific teams, particularly our President and Chief Executive Officer, Randall C. Schatzman, our Chief Scientific
Officer, John A. Latham, our Chief Business Officer, Mark J. Litton, our Senior Vice President, Translational

Medicine, Jeffrey T.L. Smith, our Senior Vice President, Finance, Larry K. Benedict and our Senior Vice President,
Pharmaceutical Operations, Randal A. Hassler. The employment of our executive officers is at-will and our executive
officers may terminate their employment with us at any time. The loss of the services of any of our senior executive
officers could impede the achievement of our research, development and commercialization objectives. Although we
maintain “key person” insurance for Drs. Schatzman, Latham, Litton and Smith, any insurance proceeds we may receive
under our “key person” insurance would not adequately compensate us for the loss of their services.

Recruiting and retaining qualified scientific, clinical, manufacturing and sales and marketing personnel is also critical
to our success. We may not be able to attract and retain these personnel on acceptable terms given the competition
among numerous pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies for similar personnel. We also experience competition
for the hiring of scientific and clinical personnel from universities and research institutions. Although, to date, we
have not experienced problems attracting and retaining highly qualified personnel, our industry has experienced a high
rate of turnover of management personnel in recent years. In addition, we rely on consultants and advisors, including
scientific and clinical advisors, to assist us in formulating our research and development and commercialization
strategy. Our consultants and advisors may be employed by third parties and have commitments under consulting or
advisory contracts with other entities that may limit their availability to us.

We expect to expand our development, regulatory affairs, sales and marketing and other capabilities, and as a result,
we may encounter difficulties in managing our growth, which could disrupt our operations.

Over the next several years, if our product candidates receive marketing approval, we expect to experience significant
growth in the number of our employees and the scope of our operations, particularly in the areas of drug development,
regulatory affairs, sales and marketing and other functional areas, including finance, accounting and legal. For
example, if ALD403 is approved, we plan to build a 75 to 100 person sales force targeting high-prescribing
neurologists and headache centers in the United States. To manage our
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anticipated future growth, we must continue to implement and improve our managerial, operational and financial
systems, expand our facilities and continue to recruit and train additional qualified personnel. Due to our limited
financial resources and the limited experience of our management team in managing a company with such anticipated
growth, we may not be able to effectively manage the expansion of our operations or recruit and train additional
qualified personnel. The physical expansion of our operations may lead to significant costs and may divert our
management and business development resources. Any inability to manage growth could delay the execution of our
business plans or disrupt our operations.

If we fail to comply with environmental, health and safety laws and regulations, we could become subject to fines or
penalties or incur costs that could harm our business.

We are subject to numerous environmental, health and safety laws and regulations, including those governing
laboratory procedures and the handling, use, storage, treatment and disposal of hazardous materials and wastes. Our
operations involve the use of hazardous and flammable materials, including chemicals and biological materials. Our
operations also produce hazardous waste products. We generally contract with third parties for the disposal of these
materials and wastes. We cannot eliminate the risk of contamination or injury from these materials. In the event of
contamination or injury resulting from our use of hazardous materials, we could be held liable for any resulting
damages, and any liability could exceed our resources. We also could incur significant costs associated with civil or
criminal fines and penalties.

Although we maintain workers’ compensation insurance to cover us for costs and expenses we may incur due to
injuries to our employees resulting from the use of hazardous materials, this insurance may not provide adequate
coverage against potential liabilities. We do not maintain insurance for environmental liability or toxic tort claims that
may be asserted against us in connection with our storage or disposal of biological, hazardous materials.

In addition, we may be required to incur substantial costs to comply with current or future environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations. These current or future laws and regulations may divert resources away from our
research, development or production efforts. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations also may result in
substantial fines, penalties or other sanctions.

Business disruptions could harm our future revenues and financial condition and increase our costs and expenses.

Our operations could be subject to earthquakes, power shortages, telecommunications failures, floods, hurricanes,
fires, extreme weather conditions, medical epidemics and other natural or manmade disasters or business
interruptions. The occurrence of any of these business disruptions could harm our operations and financial condition
and increase our costs and expenses. Our corporate headquarters is located in Washington and certain clinical sites for
our product candidates, operations of our existing and future partners and suppliers are or will be located in
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Washington near major earthquake faults. The ultimate impact on us, our significant partners, suppliers and our
general infrastructure of being located near major earthquake faults and being consolidated in certain geographical
areas is unknown, but our operations and financial condition could suffer in the event of a major earthquake or other
natural or manmade disaster.

Marketing approval of our product candidates in international markets will subject us to additional costs and a variety
of risks associated with international operations.

We intend to pursue marketing approvals for our product candidates in international markets directly or with partners
and will be subject to additional costs and additional risks related to international operations, including:

different regulatory requirements for drug approvals in foreign countries;

reduced protection for intellectual property rights;

unexpected changes in tariffs, trade barriers and regulatory requirements;

economic weakness, including inflation or political instability in particular foreign economies and markets;

compliance with tax, employment, immigration and labor laws for employees living or traveling abroad;

foreign taxes, including withholding of payroll taxes;

foreign currency fluctuations, which could result in increased operating expenses and reduced revenues, and other
obligations incident to doing business in another country;
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workforce uncertainty in countries where labor unrest is more common than in the United States;

production shortages resulting from any events affecting raw material supply or manufacturing capabilities abroad;
and

business interruptions resulting from geopolitical actions, including war and terrorism, or natural disasters including
earthquakes, typhoons, floods and fires.

Our ability to use our net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards to offset future taxable income may be subject to
certain limitations.

As of December 31, 2014, we had U.S. net operating loss carryforwards, or NOLSs, of $134.0 million, which may be
used to offset future taxable income or offset income taxes due. In addition, we have U.S. research and development
tax credit carryforwards of $6.5 million. These NOLs and tax credit carryforwards expire in various years beginning
in 2024, if not utilized. Utilization of the NOLs and tax credit carryforwards may be subject to an annual limitation
due to historical or future ownership change rules pursuant to Sections 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue Code. We
performed a section 382 ownership analysis through 2009 and determined that an ownership change occurred in 2005.
Based on the analysis performed, however, we do not believe that the Section 382 annual limitation will impact our
ability to utilize the tax attributes that existed as of the date of the ownership change in a material manner. We have
not completed a study to determine the impact of our 2015 public offerings, our initial public offering, or IPO, our
private placement in 2012 or other transactions which have occurred since the 2009 analysis, on our NOLs and tax
credit carryforwards under Sections 382 and 383 of the Code. If we have experienced an ownership change in the past
or will experience an ownership change as a result of future changes in our stock ownership, some of which changes
are outside our control, the tax benefits related to the NOLs and tax credit carryforwards may be further limited or
lost.

Our internal computer systems, or those of our CROs or other contractors or consultants, may fail or suffer security
breaches, which could result in a material disruption of our drug development programs.

Despite the implementation of security measures, our internal computer systems and those of our CROs and other
contractors and consultants are vulnerable to damage from computer viruses, unauthorized access, natural disasters,
terrorism, war and telecommunication and electrical failures. While we have not experienced any such system failure,
accident or security breach to date, if such an event were to occur and cause interruptions in our operations, it could
result in a material disruption of our drug development programs. For example, the loss of clinical trial data from
completed or ongoing clinical trials for any of our product candidates could result in delays in our regulatory approval
efforts and significantly increase our costs to recover or reproduce the data. To the extent that any disruption or
security breach were to result in a loss of or damage to our data or applications, or inappropriate disclosure of
confidential or proprietary information, we could incur liability and the further development of our product candidates
could be delayed.
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We may engage in future acquisitions that increase our capital requirements, dilute our stockholders, cause us to incur
debt or assume contingent liabilities and subject us to other risks.

We may evaluate various strategic transactions, including licensing or acquiring complementary products,
technologies or businesses. Any potential acquisitions may entail numerous risks, including increased operating
expenses and cash requirements, assimilation of operations and products, retention of key employees, diversion of our
management’s attention and uncertainties in our ability to maintain key business relationships of the acquired entities.
In addition, if we undertake acquisitions, we may issue dilutive securities, assume or incur debt obligations, incur
large one-time expenses and acquire intangible assets that could result in significant future amortization expense.
Moreover, we may not be able to locate suitable acquisition opportunities and this inability could impair our ability to
grow or obtain access to technology or products that may be important to the development of our business.

Risks Related to Intellectual Property

If we fail to comply with our obligations in our intellectual property licenses with third parties, we could lose license
rights that are important to our business.

We are a party to intellectual property license agreements with third parties. For example, we have a third-party
royalty free license associated with the Keck Graduate Institute for MabXpress, our yeast-based proprietary
manufacturing technology. We may enter into additional license agreements in the future. Our existing license
agreements impose, and we expect that our future license agreements will impose, various diligence, royalty payment,
milestone payment, insurance and other obligations on us. If we fail to comply with these obligations or our other
obligations in our license agreements, our licensors may have the right to terminate these agreements, in which event
we may not be able to develop and market any product or use any platform technology that is covered by these
agreements. Termination of these licenses or reduction or elimination of our licensed rights may result in our having
to negotiate
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new or reinstated licenses with less favorable terms or our not having sufficient intellectual property rights to operate
our business. The occurrence of such events could materially harm our business.

Our ability to successfully commercialize our products may be impaired if we are unable to obtain and maintain
effective intellectual property rights for our proprietary antibody platform and product candidates.

Our success depends in large part on our and our licensors’ ability to obtain and maintain patent and other intellectual
property protection in the United States and in other countries with respect to our proprietary antibody platform and
products. In some circumstances, we may not have the right to control the preparation, filing and prosecution of patent
applications, or to maintain the patents or enforce the patents, covering technology or products that we license from
third parties. Therefore, we cannot be certain that these patents and applications will be prosecuted and enforced in a
manner consistent with the best interests of our business. In addition, if third parties who license patents to us fail to
maintain such patents, or lose rights to those patents, the rights we have licensed may be reduced or eliminated.
Because certain intellectual property rights are shared between us and any of our future collaborators, it is possible
that disputes may arise related to the distribution of those rights.

We have sought to protect our proprietary position by filing patent applications in the United States and abroad related
to our novel technologies and products that are important to our business. This process is expensive and
time-consuming, and we may not be able to file and prosecute all necessary or desirable patent applications at a
reasonable cost or in a timely manner. It is also possible that we will fail to identify patentable aspects of our research
and development output before it is too late to obtain patent protection. The standards that the United States Patent
and Trademark Office, or USPTO, uses to grant patents are not always applied predictably or uniformly and can
change. Consequently, we cannot be certain as to whether pending patent applications will be allowed; and if allowed,
we cannot be certain as to the type and extent of patent claims that will be issued to us in the future. Our existing
patents and any future patents we obtain may not be sufficiently broad to prevent others from using our technologies
or from developing competing products and technologies.

The patent position of biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies generally is highly uncertain and involves
complex legal and factual questions for which legal principles remain unresolved. In recent years patent rights have
been the subject of significant litigation. As a result, the issuance, scope, validity, enforceability and commercial value
of our and our licensors’ patent rights are highly uncertain. Our and our licensors’ pending and future patent
applications may not result in patents being issued which protect our technology or products or which effectively
prevent others from commercializing competitive technologies and products. Changes in either the patent laws or
interpretation of the patent laws in the United States and other countries may diminish the value of our patents or
narrow the scope of our patent protection. The laws of foreign countries may not protect our rights to the same extent
as the laws of the United States. Publications of discoveries in the scientific literature often lag behind the actual
discoveries, and patent applications in the United States and other jurisdictions are typically not published until 18
months after filing, or in some cases not at all. Therefore, we cannot be certain that we or our licensors were the first
to make the inventions claimed in our owned and licensed patents or pending patent applications, or that we or our
licensors were the first to file for patent protection of such inventions.
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In March 2013, the United States converted to a first-to-file patent system under the recently enacted America Invents
Act. With this change, the United States patent system was brought into closer conformity with the patent systems of
other countries, the vast majority of which operate as first-to-file patent systems. Under the former system, and
assuming the other requirements for patentability were met, the first to conceive of the claimed invention was entitled
to the patent. A number of our patents and patent applications are subject to the first-to-invent system because they
originated prior to the March 2013 cutoff. Under the new United States system, and outside the United States, the first
to file a patent application is entitled to the patent, with certain exceptions. A number of our patents and patent
applications are subject to the new first-to-file system in the United States because they originated after the March
2013 cutoff. The full effect of these changes remains unclear as the USPTO endeavors to implement various
regulations concerning the new system. Furthermore, the courts have yet to address the vast majority of these
provisions and the applicability of the America Invents Act and new regulations on specific patents discussed herein
have not been determined and would need to be reviewed. We may become involved in opposition, interference, or
derivation proceedings challenging our patent rights or the patent rights of others, and the outcome of any proceedings
are highly uncertain. An adverse determination in any such proceeding could reduce the scope of, or invalidate, our
patent rights, allow third parties to commercialize our technology or products and compete directly with us, without
payment to us, or result in our inability to manufacture or commercialize products without infringing third-party
patent rights. Even if our owned and licensed patent applications issue as patents, they may not issue in a form that
will provide us with any meaningful protection, prevent competitors from competing with us or otherwise provide us
with any competitive advantage. Our competitors may be able to circumvent our owned or licensed patents by
developing similar or alternative technologies or products in a non-infringing manner. The issuance of a patent is not
conclusive as to its scope, validity or enforceability, and our owned and licensed patents may be challenged in the
courts or patent offices in the United States and abroad. Such challenges may result in patent claims being narrowed,
invalidated or held unenforceable, which could limit our ability to stop or prevent us from stopping others from using
or commercializing similar or identical technology and products, or limit the duration of the patent protection of our
technology and products. Given the amount of time required for the development, testing and regulatory review of
future product candidates, patents protecting such candidates might expire before or shortly after such candidates are
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commercialized. As a result, our owned and licensed patent portfolio may not provide us with sufficient rights to
exclude others from commercializing products similar or identical to ours or otherwise provide us with a competitive
advantage.

We may become involved in lawsuits to protect or enforce our patents, which could be expensive, time-consuming
and unsuccessful.

Competitors may infringe our patents. To counter infringement or unauthorized use, we may be required to file
infringement claims, which can be expensive and time-consuming. In addition, in an infringement proceeding, a court
may decide that a patent of ours is invalid or unenforceable, or may refuse to stop the other party from using the
technology at issue on the grounds that our patents do not cover the technology in question. The standards that courts
use to interpret patents are not always applied predictably or uniformly and can change, particularly as new
technologies develop. As a result, we cannot predict with certainty how much protection, if any, will be given to our
patents if we attempt to enforce them and they are challenged in court. An adverse result in any litigation proceeding
could put one or more of our patents at risk of being invalidated or interpreted narrowly. Inequitable conduct is
frequently raised as a defense during intellectual property litigation. It is believed that all parties involved in the
prosecution of our patent applications have complied with their duties of disclosure in the course of prosecuting our
patent applications, however, it is possible that legal claims to the contrary could be asserted if we were engaged in
intellectual property litigation, and the results of any such legal claims are uncertain due to the inherent uncertainty of
litigation. If a court determines that any party involved in the prosecution of our patents failed to comply with their
duty of disclosure, the subject patent would be unenforceable. Furthermore, because of the substantial amount of
discovery required in connection with intellectual property litigation, there is a risk that some of our confidential
information could be compromised by disclosure during this type of litigation.

Third parties may initiate legal proceedings alleging that we are infringing their intellectual property rights, the
outcome of which would be uncertain and could harm our business. In addition, we are currently involved in an
opposition proceeding involving the granted European patent of one of our potential competitors

Third parties may assert infringement claims against us, or other parties we have agreed to indemnify, based on
existing patents or patents that may be granted in the future. We are aware of third-party patents and patent
applications containing granted claims relating to CGRP antibodies and the therapeutic use of CGRP antibodies to
treat conditions including migraine, including a European patent held by Labrys. In July 2014, we, along with Eli
Lilly and Company, filed an opposition to the Labrys European patent requesting that such patent be revoked in its
entirety. While, for the reasons set forth in our opposition, we believe this patent should be revoked in its entirety, the
ultimate outcome of the opposition remains uncertain. If the European Patent Office decides not to revoke the Labrys
European patent in its entirety, or only revokes certain claims of the patent, and any surviving claims are determined
to encompass our intended use of ALD403, we may not be able to commercialize ALD403 in the European Union for
its intended use, which could materially adversely affect our business, operating results and financial condition.
Furthermore, since patent applications are published some time after filing, and because applications can take several
years to issue, there may be additional currently pending third-party patent applications that are unknown to us, which
may later result in issued patents. We may initiate litigation or other legal proceedings with respect to other patents in
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the future. Because of the inevitable uncertainty in intellectual property litigation, we could lose a patent infringement
action asserted against us or opposition or other legal proceeding regardless of our perception of the merits of the case.
If we are found to infringe a third party’s intellectual property rights, we could be required to obtain a license from
such third party to continue developing and commercializing our products and technology. However, we may not be
able to obtain any required license on commercially reasonable terms or at all. Even if we are able to obtain a license,
it may be non-exclusive, thereby giving our competitors access to the same technologies licensed to us. We could be
forced, including by court order, to cease commercializing the infringing technology or product. In addition, in any
such proceeding or litigation, we could be found liable for monetary damages, including treble damages if we are
found to have willfully infringed a patent, and attorneys’ fees. A finding of infringement could prevent us from
commercializing our product candidates or force us to cease some of our business operations.

We may be unable to protect the confidentiality of our trade secrets, thus harming our business and competitive
position.

In addition to our patented technology and products, we rely upon trade secrets, including unpatented know-how,
technology and other proprietary information to develop and maintain our competitive position, which we seek to
protect, in part, by confidentiality agreements with our employees, collaborators and consultants. We also have
agreements with our employees and selected consultants that obligate them to assign their inventions to us. However,
it is possible that technology relevant to our business will be independently developed by a person that is not a party to
such an agreement. Furthermore, if the employees, consultants or collaborators that are parties to these agreements
breach or violate the terms of these agreements, we may not have adequate remedies for any such breach or violation,
and we could lose our trade secrets through such breaches or violations. Furthermore, our trade secrets could be
disclosed, misappropriated or otherwise become known or be independently discovered by our competitors. Our trade
secrets can be lost through their inadvertent or advertent disclosure to others. In addition, intellectual property laws in
foreign countries may not protect our intellectual property to the same extent as the laws of the United States. If our
trade secrets are disclosed or misappropriated, it would harm our ability to protect our rights and harm our business.

37

72



Edgar Filing: ALDER BIOPHARMACEUTICALS INC - Form 10-Q

We may be subject to claims that our employees have wrongfully used or disclosed intellectual property of their
former employers. Intellectual property litigation or proceedings could cause us to spend substantial resources and
distract our personnel from their normal responsibilities.

Many of our employees were previously employed at universities or other biotechnology or pharmaceutical
companies, including our competitors or potential competitors. Although we try to ensure that our employees do not
use the proprietary information or know-how of others in their work for us, we may be subject to claims that we or
these employees have used or disclosed intellectual property, including trade secrets or other proprietary information,
of any such employee’s former employer. Litigation may be necessary to defend against these claims. If we fail in
defending any such claims, in addition to paying monetary damages, we may lose valuable intellectual property rights
or personnel. Even if we are successful in defending against such claims, litigation or other legal proceedings relating
to intellectual property claims may cause us to incur significant expenses, and could distract our technical and
management personnel from their normal responsibilities. In addition, there could be public announcements of the
results of hearings, motions or other interim proceedings or developments and if securities analysts or investors
perceive these results to be negative, it could have a substantial adverse effect on the price of our common stock. Such
litigation or proceedings could substantially increase our operating losses and reduce our resources available for
development activities. We may not have sufficient financial or other resources to adequately conduct such litigation
or proceedings. Some of our competitors may be able to sustain the costs of such litigation or proceedings more
effectively than we can because of their substantially greater financial resources. Uncertainties resulting from the
initiation and continuation of patent litigation or other intellectual property related proceedings could impair our
ability to compete in the marketplace.

Risks Related to Government Regulation

The regulatory approval process is expensive, time consuming and uncertain and may prevent us or our any of our
future collaboration partners from obtaining approvals for the commercialization of some or all of our product
candidates.

Among other things, the research, testing, manufacturing, labeling, approval, selling, import, export, marketing and
distribution of drug products are subject to extensive regulation by the FDA and other regulatory authorities in the
United States and other countries, which regulations differ from country to country. Neither we nor any future
collaboration partner is permitted to market our product candidates in the United States until we receive approval of a
BLA from the FDA. We have not submitted an application or received marketing approval for any of our product
candidates. Obtaining approval of BLA can be a lengthy, expensive and uncertain process. In addition, failure to
comply with FDA and other applicable U.S. and foreign regulatory requirements may subject us to administrative or
judicially imposed sanctions, including the following:
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warning letters;

civil or criminal penalties and fines;

injunctions;

suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approval;

suspension of any ongoing clinical trials;

voluntary or mandatory product recalls and publicity requirements;

refusal to accept or approve applications for marketing approval of new drugs or biologics or supplements to
approved applications filed by us;

restrictions on operations, including costly new manufacturing requirements; or

seizure or detention of our products or import bans.

Prior to receiving approval to commercialize any of our product candidates in the United States or abroad, we and any
of our future collaboration partners must demonstrate with substantial evidence from well-controlled clinical trials,
and to the satisfaction of the FDA and other regulatory authorities abroad, that such product candidates are safe and
effective for their intended uses. Results from preclinical studies and clinical trials can be interpreted in different
ways. Even if we and any of our future collaboration partners believe the preclinical or clinical data for our product
candidates are promising, such data may not be sufficient to support approval by the FDA and other regulatory
authorities. Administering any of our product candidates to humans may produce undesirable side-
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effects, which could interrupt, delay or cause suspension of clinical trials of our product candidates and result in the
FDA or other regulatory authorities denying approval of our product candidates for any or all targeted indications.

Regulatory approval of BLA is not guaranteed, and the approval process is expensive and may take several years. The
FDA also has substantial discretion in the approval process. Despite the time and expense exerted, failure can occur at
any stage, and we could encounter problems that cause us to abandon or repeat clinical trials, or perform additional
preclinical studies and clinical trials. The number of preclinical studies and clinical trials that will be required for FDA
approval varies depending on the product candidate, the disease or condition that the product candidate is designed to
address and the regulations applicable to any particular product candidate.

The FDA can delay, limit or deny approval of a product candidate for many reasons, including, but not limited to, the
following:

a product candidate may not be deemed safe or effective;

FDA officials may not find the data from preclinical studies and clinical trials sufficient;

the FDA might not approve our or our third-party manufacturers’ processes or facilities; or

the FDA may change its approval policies or adopt new regulations.

If any of our product candidates fails to demonstrate safety and efficacy in clinical trials or does not gain regulatory
approval, our business will be harmed.

Even if we receive regulatory approval for a product candidate, we will be subject to ongoing regulatory obligations
and continued regulatory review, which may result in significant additional expense and subject us to penalties if we
fail to comply with applicable regulatory requirements.

Once regulatory approval has been granted, the approved product and its manufacturer are subject to continual review
by the FDA and/or non-U.S. regulatory authorities. Any regulatory approval that we or any of our future collaboration
partners receive for our product candidates may be subject to limitations on the indicated uses for which the product
may be marketed or contain requirements for potentially costly post-marketing follow-up trials to monitor the safety
and efficacy of the product. In addition, if the FDA and/or non-U.S. regulatory authorities approve any of our product
candidates, we will be subject to extensive and ongoing regulatory requirements by the FDA and other regulatory
authorities with regard to the labeling, packaging, adverse event reporting, storage, advertising, promotion and
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recordkeeping, among other things, for our products. In addition, manufacturers of our drug products are required to
comply with cGMP regulations, which include requirements related to quality control and quality assurance as well as
the corresponding maintenance of records and documentation. Furthermore, regulatory authorities must approve these
manufacturing facilities before they can be used to manufacture our drug products, and these facilities are subject to
continual review and periodic inspections by the FDA and other regulatory authorities for compliance with cGMP
regulations. If we or a third party discover previously unknown problems with a product, such as adverse events of
unanticipated severity or frequency, or problems with the facility where the product is manufactured, a regulatory
authority may impose restrictions on that product, the manufacturer or us, including requiring withdrawal of the
product from the market or suspension of manufacturing. If we, our product candidates or the manufacturing facilities
for our product candidates fail to comply with regulatory requirements of the FDA and/or other non-U.S. regulatory
authorities, we could be subject to administrative or judicially imposed sanctions, including the following:

warning letters;

civil or criminal penalties and fines;

injunctions;

suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approval;

suspension of any ongoing clinical trials;

voluntary or mandatory product recalls and publicity requirements;

refusal to approve pending applications for marketing approval of new drugs or supplements to approved applications
filed by us;

restrictions on operations, including costly new manufacturing requirements; or
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seizure or detention of our products or import bans.

The regulatory requirements and policies may change and additional government regulations may be enacted for
which we may also be required to comply. We cannot predict the likelihood, nature or extent of government
regulation that may arise from future legislation or administrative action, either in the United States or in other
countries. If we are not able to maintain regulatory compliance, we may not be permitted to market our future
products and our business may suffer.

Failure to obtain regulatory approvals in foreign jurisdictions will prevent us from marketing our products
internationally.

We or a future collaboration partner may market ALD403 and any future products in international markets. In order to
market our future products in the European Economic Area, or EEA, and many other foreign jurisdictions, we must
obtain separate regulatory approvals. Specifically, in the EEA, medicinal products can only be commercialized after
obtaining a Marketing Authorization, or MA.

Before granting the MA, the European Medicines Agency, or EMA, or the competent authorities of the member states
of the EEA make an assessment of the risk-benefit balance of the product on the basis of scientific criteria concerning
its quality, safety and efficacy.

We have had limited interactions with foreign regulatory authorities, and the approval procedures vary among
countries and can involve additional clinical testing, and the time required to obtain approval may differ from that
required to obtain FDA approval. Clinical trials conducted in one country may not be accepted by regulatory
authorities in other countries. Approval by the FDA does not ensure approval by regulatory authorities in other
countries, and approval by one or more foreign regulatory authorities does not ensure approval by regulatory
authorities in other foreign countries or by the FDA. However, a failure or delay in obtaining regulatory approval in
one country may have a negative effect on the regulatory process in others. The foreign regulatory approval process
may include all of the risks associated with obtaining FDA approval. We may not obtain foreign regulatory approvals
on a timely basis, if at all. We may not be able to file for regulatory approvals and even if we file we may not receive
necessary approvals to commercialize our products in any market.

Healthcare reform measures could hinder or prevent our product candidates’ commercial success.

In the United States, there have been and we expect there will continue to be a number of legislative and regulatory
changes to the healthcare system in ways that could affect our future revenues and profitability and the future revenues
and profitability of our potential customers. Federal and state lawmakers regularly propose and, at times, enact
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legislation that would result in significant changes to the healthcare system, some of which are intended to contain or
reduce the costs of medical products and services. For example, one of the most significant healthcare reform
measures in decades, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended by the Health Care and Education
Reconciliation Act, collectively, the ACA, was enacted in 2010. The ACA contains a number of provisions, including
those governing enrollment in federal healthcare programs, reimbursement changes and fraud and abuse measures, all
of which will impact existing government healthcare programs and will result in the development of new programs.
The ACA, among other things:

imposes a non-deductible annual fee on pharmaceutical manufacturers or importers who sell “branded prescription
drugs”;

increases the minimum level of Medicaid rebates payable by manufacturers of brand-name drugs from 15.1% to
23.1%;

requires collection of rebates for drugs paid by Medicaid managed care organizations;

requires manufacturers to participate in a coverage gap discount program, under which they must agree to offer 50%
point-of-sale discounts off negotiated prices of applicable branded drugs to eligible beneficiaries during their coverage
gap period, as a condition for the manufacturer’s outpatient drugs to be covered under Medicare Part D; and

creates a process for approval of biologic therapies that are similar or identical to approved biologics.

While the U.S. Supreme Court upheld the constitutionality of most elements of the ACA in June 2012, other legal
challenges are still pending final adjudication in several jurisdictions. In addition, Congress has also proposed a
number of legislative initiatives, including possible repeal of the ACA. At this time, it remains unclear whether there
will be any changes made to the ACA, whether to certain provisions or its entirety. We cannot assure that the ACA, as
currently enacted or as amended in the future, will not adversely affect our business and financial results and we
cannot predict how future federal or state legislative or administrative changes relating to healthcare reform will affect
our business.
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In addition, other legislative changes have been proposed and adopted since the ACA was enacted. For example, the
Budget Control Act of 2011, among other things, created the Joint Select Committee on Deficit Reduction to
recommend proposals in spending reductions to Congress. The Joint Select Committee did not achieve a targeted
deficit reduction of at least $1.2 trillion for the years 2013 through 2021, which triggered the legislation’s automatic
reduction to several government programs, including aggregate reductions to Medicare payments to providers of up to
2% per fiscal year that went into effect on April 1, 2013 and will remain in effect through 2024 unless additional
Congressional action is taken. On January 2, 2013, President Obama signed into law the American Taxpayer Relief
Act of 2012, or the ATRA, which, among other things, further reduced Medicare payments to several providers,
including hospitals, and increased the statute of limitations period for the government to recover overpayments to
providers from three to five years.

There have been and likely will continue to be legislative and regulatory proposals at the federal and state levels
directed at containing or lowering the cost of health care. We cannot predict the initiatives that may be adopted in the
future or their full impact. The continuing efforts of the government, insurance companies, managed care
organizations and other payors of healthcare services to contain or reduce costs of health care may adversely affect:

our ability to set a price we believe is fair for our products;

our ability to generate revenues and achieve or maintain profitability; and

the availability of capital.

Furthermore, changes in regulatory requirements and guidance may occur and we may need to amend clinical trial
protocols to reflect these changes. Amendments may require us to resubmit our clinical trial protocols to Institutional
Review Boards for reexamination, which may impact the costs, timing or successful completion of a clinical trial. In
light of widely publicized events concerning the safety risk of certain drug products, regulatory authorities, members
of Congress, the Governmental Accounting Office, medical professionals and the general public have raised concerns
about potential drug safety issues. These events have resulted in the recall and withdrawal of drug products, revisions
to drug labeling that further limit use of the drug products and establishment of risk management programs that may,
for instance, restrict distribution of drug products or require safety surveillance and/or patient education. The
increased attention to drug safety issues may result in a more cautious approach by the FDA to clinical trials and the
drug approval process. Data from clinical trials may receive greater scrutiny with respect to safety, which may make
the FDA or other regulatory authorities more likely to terminate or suspend clinical trials before completion, or
require longer or additional clinical trials that may result in substantial additional expense and a delay or failure in
obtaining approval or approval for a more limited indication than originally sought.

Given the serious public health risks of high profile adverse safety events with certain drug products, the FDA may
require, as a condition of approval, costly risk evaluation and mitigation strategies, which may include safety
surveillance, restricted distribution and use, patient education, enhanced labeling, special packaging or labeling,
expedited reporting of certain adverse events, preapproval of promotional materials and restrictions on
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direct-to-consumer advertising.

If we fail to comply with healthcare laws, we could face substantial penalties and our business, operations and
financial condition could be adversely affected.

Even though we do not and will not control referrals of healthcare services or bill directly to Medicare, Medicaid or
other third-party payors, certain federal and state healthcare laws and regulations, including those pertaining to fraud
and abuse and patients’ rights, are and will be applicable to our business. We could be subject to healthcare regulation
by both the federal government and the states in which we conduct our business. The laws that may affect our ability
to operate include, without limitation:

the federal healthcare program Anti-Kickback Statute, which prohibits, among other things, any person or entity from
knowingly and willfully offering, soliciting, receiving or providing remuneration, directly or indirectly, in exchange
for or to induce either the referral of an individual for, or the purchase, order or recommendation of, any good or
service for which payment may be made under federal healthcare programs, such as the Medicare and Medicaid
programs;

indirectly, to induce either the referral of an individual, for an item or service or the purchasing or ordering of a good
or service, for which payment may be made under federal healthcare programs, such as the Medicare and Medicaid
programs;

the federal False Claims Act, which prohibits, among other things, individuals or entities from knowingly presenting,
or causing to be presented, false claims, or knowingly using false statements, to obtain payment from the federal
government, and which may apply to entities like us which provide coding and billing advice to customers;
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federal criminal laws that prohibit, among other things, executing a scheme to defraud any healthcare benefit program
or making false statements relating to healthcare matters;

the federal transparency requirements under the ACA require certain manufacturers of drugs, devices, biologics and
medical supplies to report to the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services information related to physician
payments and other transfers of value and physician ownership and investment interests;

the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended by the Health Information
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, which governs the conduct of certain electronic healthcare
transactions and protects the security and privacy of protected health information; and

state law equivalents of each of the above federal laws, such as anti-kickback and false claims laws which may apply
to items or services reimbursed by any third-party payor, including commercial insurers.

The ACA, among other things, amends the intent requirement of the Federal Anti-Kickback Statute and criminal
healthcare fraud statutes. A person or entity no longer needs to have actual knowledge of this statute or specific intent
to violate it. In addition, the ACA provides that the government may assert that a claim including items or services
resulting from a violation of the Federal Anti-Kickback Statute constitutes a false or fraudulent claim for purposes of
the False Claims Act.

If our operations are found to be in violation of any of the laws described above or any other governmental regulations
that apply to us, we may be subject to penalties, including administrative, civil and criminal penalties, damages, fines
and the curtailment or restructuring of our operations. Any penalties, damages, fines, curtailment or restructuring of
our operations could adversely affect our ability to operate our business and our financial results. Any action against
us for violation of these laws, even if we successfully defend against it, could cause us to incur significant legal
expenses and divert our management’s attention from the operation of our business. Moreover, achieving and
sustaining compliance with applicable federal and state privacy, security and fraud laws may prove costly.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock

Our stock price may be volatile, and purchasers of our common stock could incur substantial losses.

Our stock price has fluctuated in the past and is likely to be volatile in the future. In the six months ended June 30,
2015, the reported sale price of our common stock has fluctuated between $22.23 and $53.14 per share. The stock
market in general and the market for biotechnology companies in particular have experienced extreme volatility that
has often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. As a result of this volatility, investors
may experience losses on their investment in our common stock. The market price for our common stock may be
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influenced by many factors, including the following:

the success of competitive products or technologies;

results of clinical trials of our product candidates or those of our competitors;

regulatory or legal developments in the United States and other countries, especially changes in laws or regulations
applicable to our product candidates;

introductions and announcements of future product candidates by us, any of our future collaborators, or our
competitors, and the timing of these introductions or announcements;

actions taken by regulatory agencies with respect to our product candidates, clinical trials, manufacturing process or
sales and marketing terms;

variations in our financial results or those of companies that are perceived to be similar to us;

the success of our efforts to discover, acquire or in-license additional products or product candidates;

developments concerning our future collaborations, including but not limited to those with our sources of
manufacturing supply and our future collaborators;

manufacturing disruptions;

announcements by us or our competitors of significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital
commitments;
42
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developments or disputes concerning patents or other proprietary rights, including litigation matters and our ability to

obtain patent protection for our product candidates;

our ability or inability to raise additional capital and the terms on which we raise it;

the recruitment or departure of key personnel;

changes in the structure of healthcare payment systems;

market conditions in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology sectors;

actual or anticipated changes in earnings estimates or changes in stock market analyst recommendations regarding our

common stock, other comparable companies or our industry generally;

trading volume of our common stock;

sales of our common stock by us or our stockholders;

changes in our board of directors or key personnel;

the expiration of contractual lock-up agreements;

changes in our capital structure, such as future issuances of debt or equity securities;

short sales, hedging and other derivative transactions involving our capital stock;

general economic, industry and market conditions in the United States and abroad;

other events or factors, including those resulting from war, incidents of terrorism or responses to these events; and

the other risks described in this “Risk Factors™ section.
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These broad market and industry factors may seriously harm the market price of our common stock, regardless of our
operating performance. In the past, following periods of volatility in the market, securities class-action litigation has
often been instituted against companies. Such litigation, if instituted against us, could result in substantial costs and
diversion of management’s attention and resources, which could harm our business.

Substantial future sales of shares of our common stock could cause the market price of our common stock to decline.
This could cause the market price of our common stock to drop significantly, even if our business is doing well.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock into the public market could occur at any time. These
sales, or the perception in the market that the holders of a large number of shares intend to sell shares, could reduce
the market price of our common stock and could impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of additional equity
securities. We are unable to predict the effect that such sales may have on the prevailing market price of our common
stock.

In addition, as of June 30, 2015, we had options outstanding that, if fully exercised, would result in the issuance of
2,845,035 shares of common stock and there were also 3,442,198 shares of common stock reserved for future issuance
under our 2014 Equity Incentive Plan and 514,241 shares of common stock reserved for issuance under our 2014
Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The authorized number of shares under both such benefit plans are subject to
additional automatic annual increases in the number of shares of common stock reserved for future issuance. All of the
shares of common stock issuable pursuant to our equity compensation plans have been registered for public resale
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act. Accordingly, these shares will be able to be freely
sold in the public market upon issuance as permitted by any applicable vesting requirements.

Moreover, as of June 30, 2015, holders of an aggregate of up to approximately 18.9 million shares of our common
stock have rights, subject to some conditions, to require us to file registration statements covering their shares or to
include their shares in registration statements that we may file for ourselves or other stockholders.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research, or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research, about our
business, our stock price and trading volume could decline.
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The trading market for our common stock depends, in part, on the research and reports that securities or industry
analysts publish about us or our business. We do not have any control over these analysts. If one or more of the
analysts who cover us downgrade our stock or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our
stock price would likely decline. In addition, if our operating results fail to meet the forecast of analysts, our stock
price would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of our company or fail to publish reports on
us regularly, demand for our stock could decrease, which might cause our stock price and trading volume to decline.

An active trading market for our common stock may not be maintained.

Our stock is currently traded on the NASDAQ Global Market, but we can provide no assurance that we will be able to
maintain an active trading market on the NASDAQ Global Market or any other exchange in the future. The trading
volume of our common stock has been and may continue to be limited. If an active market for our common stock is
not maintained, it may be difficult for our stockholders to sell shares purchased without depressing the market price
for the shares or at all.

We are an “emerging growth company” and we cannot be certain if the reduced reporting requirements applicable to
emerging growth companies will make our common stock less attractive to investors.

We are an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act, or the JOBS Act, which
was enacted in April 2012. For as long as we continue to be an emerging growth company, we intend take advantage
of exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not emerging
growth companies, including not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive
compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements and exemptions from the requirements of holding a
nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval of any golden parachute payments not
previously approved. We will cease to be an “emerging growth company” at the end of our current fiscal year, as we
will be deemed to be a “large accelerated filer” as defined in the Exchange Act. We cannot predict if investors will find
our common stock less attractive because we may rely on these exemptions. If some investors find our common stock
less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our common stock and our stock price may
suffer or be more volatile.

Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies can delay adopting new or revised accounting standards issued
subsequent to the enactment of the JOBS Act until such time as those standards apply to private companies. We have
elected to avail ourselves of this exemption, and, therefore, we are not subject to the same new or revised accounting
standards as other public companies that are not “emerging growth companies” until these standards apply to private
companies.
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Complying with the laws and regulations affecting public companies has increased and will increase our costs and the
demands on management and could harm our operating results.

As a public company, we are incurring significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a
private company. In addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and rules subsequently implemented by the SEC and NASDAQ
impose numerous requirements on public companies, including requiring changes in corporate governance practices.
Also, the Exchange Act requires, among other things, that we file annual, quarterly and current reports with respect to
our business and operating results. Our management and other personnel will need to devote a substantial amount of
time to compliance with these laws and regulations. These burdens may increase as new legislation is passed and
implemented, including any new requirements that the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act
of 2010 may impose on public companies. These requirements have increased and will continue to increase our legal,
accounting, and financial compliance costs and have made and will continue to make some activities more time
consuming and costly. We expect these costs, difficulties and demands to increase after we are no longer an “emerging
growth company” starting with our next fiscal year. For example, we expect these rules and regulations to make it more
difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance, and in the future we may be
required to accept reduced policy limits and coverage or to incur substantial costs to maintain the same or similar
coverage. These rules and regulations could also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified persons to
serve on our board of directors or our board committees or as executive officers.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we assess the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting annually and the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures quarterly. Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, or Section 404, requires us to perform system and process evaluation and testing of our
internal control over financial reporting to allow management to report on, and our independent registered public
accounting firm potentially to attest to, the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. As an
“emerging growth company,” we expect to avail ourselves of the exemption from the requirement that our independent
registered public accounting firm attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting under
Section 404. We will no longer be able to take advantage of this exemption beginning on December 31, 2015, when
we will be deemed a large accelerated filer and, as a result, cease to be an “emerging growth company.” When our
independent
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registered public accounting firm is required to undertake an assessment of our internal control over financial
reporting, the cost of our compliance with Section 404 will correspondingly increase. Our compliance with applicable
provisions of Section 404 will require that we incur substantial accounting expense and expend significant
management time on compliance-related issues as we implement additional corporate governance practices and
comply with reporting requirements. Moreover, if we are not able to comply with the requirements of Section 404
applicable to us in a timely manner, or if we or our independent registered public accounting firm identifies
deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting that are deemed to be material weaknesses, the market
price of our stock could decline and we could be subject to sanctions or investigations by the SEC or other regulatory
authorities, which would require additional financial and management resources.

Furthermore, investor perceptions of our company may suffer if deficiencies are found, and this could cause a decline
in the market price of our stock. Irrespective of compliance with Section 404, any failure of our internal control over
financial reporting could have a material adverse effect on our stated operating results and harm our reputation. If we
are unable to implement these requirements effectively or efficiently, it could harm our operations, financial reporting,
or financial results and could result in an adverse opinion on our internal control over financial reporting from our
independent registered public accounting firm.

Provisions in our corporate charter documents could make an acquisition of us more difficult and may prevent
attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management.

Provisions in our corporate charter and our bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a merger, acquisition or other
change in control of us that stockholders may consider favorable, including transactions in which stockholders might
otherwise receive a premium for their shares. These provisions could also limit the price that investors might be
willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock, thereby depressing the market price of our common stock.
In addition, these provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our
current management by making it more difficult for stockholders to replace members of our board of directors.
Because our board of directors is responsible for appointing the members of our management team, these provisions
could in turn affect any attempt by our stockholders to replace current members of our management team. Among
others, these provisions include the following:

our board of directors is divided into three classes with staggered three-year terms which may delay or prevent a
change of our management or a change in control;

our board of directors has the right to elect directors to fill a vacancy created by the expansion of the board of
directors or the resignation, death or removal of a director, which prevents stockholders from being able to fill
vacancies on our board of directors;

our stockholders may not act by written consent or call special stockholders’ meetings; as a result, a holder, or holders,
controlling a majority of our capital stock would not be able to take certain actions other than at annual stockholders’
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meetings or special stockholders’ meetings called by the board of directors, the chairman of the board or the chief
executive officer;

our certificate of incorporation does not provide for cumulative voting in the election of directors, which limits the
ability of minority stockholders to elect director candidates;

stockholders must provide advance notice and additional disclosures in order to nominate individuals for election to
the board of directors or to propose matters that can be acted upon at a stockholders’ meeting, which may discourage
or deter a potential acquiror from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect the acquiror’s own slate of directors or
otherwise attempting to obtain control of our company; and

our board of directors may issue, without stockholder approval, shares of undesignated preferred stock; the ability to
issue undesignated preferred stock makes it possible for our board of directors to issue preferred stock with voting or
other rights or preferences that could impede the success of any attempt to acquire us.

Provisions under Delaware law and Washington law could make an acquisition of our company more difficult, limit
attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management and limit the market price of our common
stock.

In addition to provisions in our corporate charter and our bylaws, because we are incorporated in Delaware, we are
governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which generally prohibits a
Delaware corporation from engaging in any of a broad range of business combinations with any holder of at least 15%
of our capital stock for a period of three years following the date on which the stockholder became a 15% stockholder.
Likewise, because our principal executive offices are located in Washington, the anti-takeover provisions of the
Washington Business Corporation Act may apply to us under certain circumstances now or in the future. These
provisions prohibit a “target corporation” from engaging in any of a broad range of business
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combinations with any stockholder constituting an “acquiring person” for a period of five years following the date on
which the stockholder became an “acquiring person.”

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.
Use of Proceeds from Public Offering of Common Stock

On May 7, 2014, our registration statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-194672) was declared effective for our IPO. There
has been no material change in the planned use of proceeds from our IPO from that described in the prospectus filed
with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b)(4) under the Securities Act on May 8, 2014. As of June 30, 2015, we have used
an estimated $58.6 million of the proceeds from our IPO for working capital and other general corporate purposes.

As of June 30, 2015, no portion of the proceeds from our initial public offering have been paid by us directly or
indirectly to any of our directors or officers (or their associates) or persons owning ten percent or more of any class of
our equity securities or to any other affiliates, other than payments in the ordinary course of business to officers for
salaries and bonuses, and payments to our directors for service on our Board of Directors. There has been no material
change in the planned use of proceeds from our IPO from that described in the prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant
to Rule 424(b)(4) under the Securities Act on May 8, 2014.
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Item 6.Exhibits

Number

3.10

3.2

413

4.2

4.3%

31.1

31.2

32.1%

101.INS

Description

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc.

Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement, dated as of April 16, 2012, by and among Alder
BioPharmaceuticals, Inc. and certain of its stockholders.

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2014, by
and among Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc. and certain of its stockholders.

Form of Common Stock Certificate.

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).

Certifications of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
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101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.
(1)Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 13, 2014 (File No. 001-36431) and incorporated herein by reference.
(2)Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 333-194672), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 25, 2014 and incorporated herein
by reference.
(3)Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 333-194672), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 19, 2014 and incorporated herein
by reference.
(4)Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 333-201201), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 22, 2014 and incorporated

herein by reference.

*The Certifications attached as Exhibits 32.1 that accompany this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are not deemed
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the
Registrant under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
whether made before or after the date of this Form 10-Q, irrespective of any general incorporation language
contained in such filing.

** Attached as Exhibit 101 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 formatted in
XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss),
(iv) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
tagged as blocks of text and including detailed tags.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc.

Date: August 5, 2015 By: /s/ Randall C. Schatzman
Randall C. Schatzman
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc.

Date: August 5, 2015 By: /s/ Larry K. Benedict
Larry K. Benedict
Senior Vice President, Finance
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Number Description
3.1M Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc.

3.2

413

4.2

4.3%

31.1

31.2

32.1%

101.INS

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc.

Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement, dated as of April 16, 2012, by and among Alder
BioPharmaceuticals, Inc. and certain of its stockholders.

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2014, by
and among Alder BioPharmaceuticals, Inc. and certain of its stockholders.

Form of Common Stock Certificate.

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).

Certifications of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
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101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

(1)Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 13, 2014 (File No. 001-36431) and incorporated herein by reference.

(2)Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 333-194672), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 25, 2014 and incorporated herein
by reference.

(3)Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 333-194672), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 19, 2014 and incorporated herein
by reference.

(4)Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 333-201201), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 22, 2014 and incorporated
herein by reference.

*The Certifications attached as Exhibits 32.1 that accompany this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are not deemed
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the
Registrant under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
whether made before or after the date of this Form 10-Q, irrespective of any general incorporation language
contained in such filing.

** Attached as Exhibit 101 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 formatted in
XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss),
(iv) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
tagged as blocks of text and including detailed tags.
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